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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and the audited financial statements of
Punjab National Bank (International) Limited (*PNBIL’ or ‘Bank” or *Company’) for the vear ended
31 March 2017. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and applicable International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Bank’s operating profit before provisions, tax and dividends for the current financial year has de-
creased by 50.87% to §18.80 million from $38.26 million for the year ended 31 March 2016. This de-
cline is against the background of the Directors’ decision to reduce the size of loan portfolio in view
of unfavourable macro-economic factors which had a particularly adverse impact on the Bank’s expo-
sure to Indian Corporates. Resultantly the size of loan portfolio before provisions reduced 1o $1,077
million from $1,476 million as at 31 March 2016 and level of customer deposits also lowered to
$1,135 million from $1,358 million as at 31 March 2016.

Due to the reduced size of advances and increase in impaired assets, operating income has decreased
by $19.16 million (35.20%) from $54.43 million 1o $35.27 million. Net interest income has fallen by
$12.59 million and net trading income was $6.65 million lower due to adverse market movement
which affected (reasury profitability. Expenditure increased by $0.29 million (1.83%) from $16.18
million to $16.47 million.

The cost to income ratio has mereased to 46.70% from 29.71% due to lower income outweighing a
slight reduction in cost. However, the Bank seeks continually to strengthen its governance and control
enviromment, and 1o invest in systems to enable it to meet the increasing business and regulatory chal-
lenges faced by all banks. In the vear 2016-17 the Bank has undertaken a very thorough review of its
overall governance, giving particular attention {o its risk governance framewaork

With many of the Bank's customers being adversely affected by the slowdown and especially by the
reduced economic growth in India (with consequent delay in flow of public funds to the much awaited
infrastructure projects), the Directors initiated an extensive review of the Bank’s credit exposures by
applying the strictest credit review methodologies, which has resulted in an increase in cumulative
gross impaired advances to $299.39 million in 2017 (2016: $144.99 million). Considering the in-
crease in impaired assets, the Directors have taken conservative approach to provisioning, which has
resulted in impairment provisions of $152.13 in the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: $71.85 million).

The impact on the profit and loss afier these increased provisions is a loss before tax for the year end-
ed 31 Mareh 2017 of $133.34 million. The losses, the 1ax effects of movements in Available for Sale
securities and other movements have created a tax credit of $22.01 million resulting in a rise in the
deferred tax asset which will offsel the tax payable on future profits.

After careful consideration and detailed due diligence, Punjab National Bank (‘PWNB' or ‘parent
bank’), the Bank’s parent, has supported PNBIL’s review and analysis of ifs credit exposures and has
enabled the booking of additional provisions through a $100 million capital injection in March 2017,
part of PNB Board's total approval of $120 million capital injection for its subsidiary. This injection
was In the form of further issuance of $80 million of Ordinary share capital and of a $20 million per-
petual bond which is acceptable as Additional Tier 1 capital for capital adequacy purposes.
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Following the parent’s capital injection the Bank had a CRAR of 21.70% as at 31 March 2017, and
met all other CET1 and Tier 1 regulatory capital requirements.

Having considered the impact of Brexit on its business and on the business of its customers, the Bank
is satisfied that the impact will be low, however the Directors will continue to monitor the situation
closely and will undertake a reappraisal should circumstances change.

The financial statements lor the year ended 31 March 2017 are shown on pages 20 to 76. Performance
highlights are given in the Strategic Report.

As in previous years, the Directors have not recommended the payment of dividend on ordinary share
capital.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND REVIEW OF THE COMPANY

Punjab National Bank (International) Limited is a UK company incorporated in 2007 as & 100% sub-
sidiary of Punjab National Bank — India (PNB). PNBIL is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Au-
thority (PRA) and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Prudential Regulation
Authority (PRA). The Bank’s parent is one of the leading public sector banks in India. PNB had an
asset base of $105.16 billion as at 31 December 2016 ($97.89 hillion as at 31 December 2013).
PNBIL's main business is 1o provide corporate and retail banking services to different segments of
cuslomers, particularly to those with business or personal links with India and UK. residents.

PNBIL started its operations with two branches in London, one in Southall and a second branch at
Gresham Street (since moved to 1 Moorgate) in Central London. Five new branches have been opened
since then, and consequently, the Bank is presently operating through seven branches across the UK.
While the Central London branch mainly caters to corporate clients, all other branches focus on retail
clients. PNBIL has received a good response from the market and built a brand image in the local UK
market.

Major activities of the Bank include accepting deposits from both retail and corporate clients, lending
to retail and corporate clients, making rupee and other remittances for its clients and treasury opera-
tions to support its funds management and to meet cross currency transactions of its chients. The Bank
has also built a portfolio of investments on its own account, held mainly for liquidity management,
The main functions of the treasury operations continue to be to source funding for the Bank, 1o main-
tain comfortable liquidity position throughout the financial year and provide guidance on the pricing
of assets and liabilities,

NEW INITIATIVES/MILESTONES

During the financial yvear, the Directors took the opportunity to develop a new sustainable and viable
five-year business strategy focusing on low risk areas which complement the Banks core competen-
cies. In order to gain market intelligence, to enhance c¢reative thinking and facilitate challenge, the
Bank has taken expert insight from outside advisers,

In tandem with the new business strategy the Bank has reassessed and reformulated its risk appetite.

The Board of the Bank has determined that it has a lower risk appetite for its businesses in some of the
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areas and now wishes to embark on a short period of consolidation after a period of rapid expansion.
The severe stress in some part of its loan book has resulted in substantial provision and the Bank now
wants to pursue a more cautious growth strategy over the next 3 to 5 years, building expertise and ca-
pacity in key business areas which have been identified as providing a ‘lower risk, lower return’ busi-
ness model,

During the year the Bank has made some significant advancement on the IT to improve customer ser-
vice that includes Enhanced SMS Alert mechanism, installation of local servers for Internet banking
and Debit Cards. The Bank is also in the process of implementing Enhanced Internet Banking Plat-
form and Mobile Banking Platform during the remainder of 2017,

The Senior Managers’ Regime (SMR) which was implemented last year has now been further ex-
panded to accommodate the wider certification regime. The overall corporate gpovernance framework
was reviewed and updated. Management team has been strengthened with the recruitment of a per-
manent Chief Financial Officer (SMF 2), Chief Risk Officer (SMF 4) and company secretary. A new
Compliance Director holding SMF16 and SMF 17 and Head of Credit have also been recruited. In
total, 20 members of staff are covered under certification regime while § members are having senior
management functions (SMFs).

The Bank has also co-sourced the internal audit function to an external professional accountancy firm
to further strengthen the audit function and has recruited a new Head of Internal Audit from the local

UK market.

The project for the establishment of *Enterprise Wide Data Warehouse' (EDW) is nearing the end of
its first phase, which leads to automation of régulatory returns, EDW extracts, cleans, confirms and
delivers data into a dimensional data store and provides queries and analysis for downstream use both
in the context of regulatory retumns and other important management information and reports.

The Bank has staried its preparations for the adoption of the [FRS 9 - Financial Instruments Account-
ing standard which comes into effect from 1 January 2018.

During the year the Bank has been successful in upgrading its single customer view (SCV) software to
incorporate new regulatory guidelines effective from 1 December 2016.

Key performance highlights. business review, capital structure, risks and uncertainties affecting the
Bank and future strategy are covered in the Strategic Report included as part of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS

During the year under review, there has been a change in the Non-Executive Director (NED) nominat-
ed from the parent bank. In addition one local Independent Non-Executive Director (INED) resigned
from the Bank and a new local INED has been appointed by the Bank in his place. The regulatory ap-
proval is under process. Four other Directors i.e. the Chairpersorn. the Managing Director, the Execu-
tive Director, and one local INED have continued to serve on Board in the same capacity throughout
the vear. Directors who held office during the year are listed on page 3.

Subsequent to the end of the year the Chairman resigned her position from PNBIL following her
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transfer to another Indian bank at the instigation of the Government of India

INTERNAL CONTROL AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for establishing an effective internal control environment in the Bank
and for reviewing its effectiveness. Although the Bank has well defined procedures for safeguarding
asscts against unauthorised use or disposition, the systems and control across the Bank are reviewed
regularly and in particular, risk controls have been the subject of an extensive and detailed review,
There is also contrel for maintaming proper accounting records and for ensuring the reliability of hi-
nancial information used within the business or for publication. Such procedures are designed 1o con-
tain and manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasonable bul not absolute assurance apainst material misstatement, errors, losses or fraud.

The Directors have therefore maintained their efforts to design and establish procedures to provide
effective internal controi within the Bank. Such procedures for the ongoing identification, evaluation
and management of the significant risks faced by the Bank have been considerably improved during
the year ended 31 March 2017 and these procedures and conirol will continue to remain under review
and oversight by the Directors,

The Directors and senior management of the Bank have adopted policies which set out the Board's
attitude to risk and internal control. Key risks identified by the Directors are formally reviewed and
assessed at least once a year by the Board vis-a-vis its risk appetite. In addition the Directors look to
operaling managemeni and internal audit to ensure that key business risks are identified, evaluated and
managed by means of procedures such as physical controls, credit and other authorisation limits and
segregation of duties. The Board Risk Committee is a sub-commitiee of the Board which monitors the
management information it receives in order to identify, control and mitigate risks pertaining to all
banking activities. The Board also receives regular reports from the Chief Risk Officer on any risk
matters that need 1o be brought 1o its attention. Significant risks identified in connection with the de-
velopment of new activities are subject to consideration by the Board,

The financial reports are presented regularly to the Board detailing the business results, variances and
other performance data. The Board is also reviewing to further enhance its ability to oversee financial
performance.

The effectiveness of the internal control system is reviewed regularly by operational management and
internal audit, and the information from such reviews is presented to the Board Audit and Compliance
Committee. The Board also receives reports of reviews undertaken by the co-sourced internal audit
function as well as reports from the external auditor which include, among other important systems
and control observation, details of internal control matters that they have identified as part of the [i-
nancial statements audit. Certain aspects of the system of internal control are also subject to regulatory
supervision, the results of which are monitored closely by the Board.

The Directors confirm that, apart from the resignation of the Chairman as noted under Directors
above, there are no subsequent events afler the balance sheet date. requiring changes or disclosure in
these financial statements,
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STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR
Each of the persons who are Directors at the date of approval of this annual report, confirm that;

* So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's
external auditor is unaware; and

e The Director has taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make them aware of any rele-
vant audit information and to establish that the external auditor is aware of that information,

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the
Companies Act 2006,

ELECTIVE RESOLUTIONS

The Company, being a wholly-owned subsidiary of Punjab National Bank, India, has elected to dis-
pense with the requirement to hold annual general meetings, present Directors' reports and financial
statements before a general meeting and re-appoint its auditor annually,

AUDITOR

Deloitte LLP is the statutory auditor of the Bank and they have indicated their willingness to continue
as the auditor of the Bank.

GENERAL MEETINGS

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 the Company is not required to hold an annual general
meeting.

Lo, e

Camilla Shaw Company number; 5781326

Company Secretary
| Moorgate, London, EC2R 6JH (UK) 26 June 2017
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This strategic report should be read in conjunction with the Directors’ Report where some of the re-
quirements of this report have been discussed.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key performance highlights of the Bank are as below:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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This is the tenth year of operations for the Bank and it has a total customer business of $2,212 million.
However, this has decreased from $2,834 million as a1 31 March 2016 with a year-on-vear decrease of
21.95%. Operating profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to $18.80 million (2016: $38.26
million), a year on year decrease of 50.87%. Decrease in operating profit is mainly on account of the
Bank’s decision to reduce the loan porifolio and increase the impaired assets.

The Barnk decided to undertake an extensive loan book review in the wake of global economic slow-
down and reduced growth in India in sectors such as OQil & Gas, Steel, Renewable Energy, Shipping
and Infrastructure that led to an increase in the identification of stressed assets, which resulted in an
increased recognition of impairment and reduction in the performing loan book.

The increased impairment has been reflected in increased net provisions of $152.13 million, which
affected the Bank’s capital pesition, and necessitated an injection of additional capital, by the parent.
Accordingly the parent has provided additional capital of $100 million during the current financial
year and an additional $ 20 million subsequent to the year end.

The Bank’s impaired loans and advances amounted to $299.39 million (2016: $144.99 million) and
the cumulative provision against impairment for loans as at 31 March 2017 is $258.56 million (2016:
$108.62 million). Collective impairment provision on loans stood at $4.72 million (2016: $5.63 mil-
lion).

The loss before taxation for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to $133.34 million (2016: loss of
$33.59 million). The losses. plus movement in Available for Sale securities and other movements have
led to a tax credit of $22.01 million, and increase in the after tax loss to $111.33 million compared to
the prior year (2016: loss of $27.23 million).

As at 31 March 2017, PNBIL had total assets of $1,455 million (2016: $1,812 million). During the
year, total lending decreased to $1,077 million (2016: $1,476 million) as the Bank sought to consoli-
date its position and focus on the recoveries, rather than fresh lending.

As at 31 March 2017, the geographical concentration of the Bank’s loans and advances to various
counterparties is mainly in UK (31.28%) and India (45.27%) based on a risk origination basis. The
main sector concentration within the Bank's loans and receivables portfolio was loans against SBLCs
and LCs of Banks (18.35%), UK real estate lending (14.30%) and loans against own deposits/deposits
held with Parent (4.71%). UK real estate lending consists of credit facilities sanctioned against mort-
gages of immovable properties (buy to let/sell, office use, and property development). These facilities
are extended with sufficient margin (on an average more than 30%) and spread over more than 141
accounts.

Having reviewed the various Brexit scenarios, the Directors are on conclusion that Brexit impact on
our business and exposures will be minimal, given that the majority of the Bank's exposures are to the
UK and India.

During the current financial year the Bank has devised and adopted a new business straiegy and risk
appetite for the next 5 years which has been developed in consultation with professional experts taking
into account the areas where the Bank has been successful in the past and where it is believed the
market offers opportunities which align with the Bank’s revised and more conservative risk appetite.
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The new strategy focuses on low risk UK and India centric business development.

In the light of its experience during the year and in keeping with its assessment of world economic
prospects, the Bank has had a keen focus on devising and embedding an enhanced corporate govern-
ance framework, and an enhanced Risk Management framework, which it has taken steps to embed in
ils corporate culture and which it aims to review and strengthen further on a continual basis. Keeping
the focus on recovery, an exclusive separate credit recovery department has been established and a
senior official from parent bank has been given the charge of it, given the majority of impairments are
associated with exposure to India. The department is guided and supported also from parent for recov-
ery in India based exposures.

GOING CONCERN BASIS
The Bank has adequate resources to continue its operations for the foreseeable future.

Although there has been a loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 (on the account of provisions made
for impaired assets) the Bank has adequate capital to support its current and proposed business. The
Bank has a CRAR of 21.70% as at 31 March 2017 following the injection of fresh common equity of
580 million and Additional Tier | capital of $20 million raised in the year ended 31 March 2017,

The Bank has continued to receive sufficient support from the parent in the form of capital and opera-
tional assistance from time to time. The Bank’s strategic plan suggests the Bank will return to profita-
bility next vear, as it embarks on its revised strategy focused on lower risk UK -based lending.

The Bank has maintained a strong liquidity position. The adequacy of liquidity continues to be en-
sured on a stand-alone basis, with the measures of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
of the Bank remaining above the regulatory minimum levels.

Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial
statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of PNBIL consists of issued ordinary share capital ($254.63 million), Additional
Tier I capital (845 million), subordinated debt (850 million), Available for sale reserve and deficit of
$107.77 million and other deductibles as detailed in note 34 to the financial statements. The total
amount of regulatory capital available as at 31 March 2017 was 8219.8]1 million.

The Capital to Risk Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) of the Bank continues to remain above the required jevel
under the Capital Requirement Regulations (CRR) and also above that required under Individual Capi-
tal Guidance (1CG) given by the regulator to the Bank. CRAR as at 31 March 2017 is 21.70% with the
Common Equity Tier I capital ratio being 11.90%. The components of regulatory capital, assessment
of capital adequacy and the leverage ratio will be given in the Pillar IIT disclosure, to be published on
the Bank's website.

The Bank was provided with [resh Ordinary share capital of $80 million and additional tier I capital of
$20 million from the parent bank in March 2017, part of PNB Board’s approval of a 8120 million cap-
ital injection for its subsidiary, together with an additional § 20 million on 2 June 2017, Alse Tier II
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Capital of $25 million raised in 2009 by issuing floating rate subordinated notes to the parent compa-
ny (Punjab National Bank) was converted into Additional Tier | capital on 16 February 2017 further
strengthening the Total Tier I capital base of the Bank.

PNBIL’s senior management monitors the Bank’s capital position on a daily basis, The Board Risk
Committee and the Board review the capital structure on a quarterly basis, or more frequently as re-
quired, The Bank reappraises the need for capital and funding throughout the year to ensure the on-
going stability and support of its business activities and compliance with regulatory requirements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Key risks for the Bank are credit risk on the loan portfolio, interest rate risk in the banking book and
operational risk including cyber nisk. These risks as well as the mitigation techniques followed by the
Bank are discussed in note 33 of the financial statements. Recovery of customer advances continues to
be the major busmess risk for the Bank, especially for a number of stressed and impaired accounts.
Since the Bank has considerable exposure to India the successful execution of recent initiatives taken
by the Indian Government is expected to have a positive impact on recovery. Even though a large part
of our exposures under this segment are collateralised, the uncertainties associated with the ability to
recover these within a reasonable time have led the Board to adopt a conservative approach and to
take higher provisions in the last two years. Having undertaken an extensive review, the Directors
have the confidence that the Bank has established appropriate mechanisms to measure, monitor and
manage risks on an ongoing basis. The Board of the Bank has stipulated threshold risk limits for each
of the major risks.

The Company is firmly committed to the management of risks, recognising that sound internal risk
management is essential to its prudent operation, particularly with the growing complexity, diversity
and volatility of markets, facilitated by rapid advances in rechnology and communications. The Direc-
tors have taken steps to ensure risk management is given the highest priority throughout the Company
and is integral to the management of the business.

Together, the operation of a three lines of defence model, the structure and composition of the Board
and the functioning of Board Audit and Compliance Committee and Board Risk Committee have been
designed with effective corporate governance in mind. These structures aims to give strategic direc-
tion and challenge to management in implementing pelicies to encourage effective systems and con-
trols and the embedding of the Board's overall risk appetite, Risk limits are designed to provide assur-
ance that no single event, or combination of events, will materially affect the well-being of the Com-
pany. The Bank’s Executive Committee, Asset and Liability Committee and other Operating Commit-
tees assisl in assessing market trends, economc and political developments and provides a forum for
in-depth review and analvsis of the risks to which the Company is subject.

The Bank’s strategies and policies regarding financial risk management, including the use of financial
instruments, the policy for hedging, and an indication of the exposure to financial risk is provided in
note 33 to'the financial statements. This note also includes the Bank’s processes for managing its capi-
tal. its financial risk management strategy, details of its financial instruments and hedging activities,
and its exposure to credit, market, liquidity and other risks. Some of the issues concerning credit risk
have been discussed in note 18,
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MARKET CONDITIONS

There has been a stronger-than-expected pickup in growth in advanced economies during the year.
mostly due to a reduced drag from inventorics and some recovery in manufacturing output as per IMF
economic outlook. The cutlook highlights that among advanced economies, activity rebounded strong-
ly in the United States after a weak first half of 2016, and the economy is approaching full employ-
ment. Qutput remains below potential in a number of other advanced economies, notably in the Euro
area. Preliminary third-quarter growth figures were somewhat stronger than previously forecast in
some econonies, such as Spain and the United Kingdom, where domestic demand held up better than
expected in the aftermath of the Brexit vole.

UK economic growth remained relatively strong in the second half of 2016, increasing by around 2%
in the year to the fourth quarter as consumer spending in particular remained resilient.

As per Asian Development Bank (ADB) India. Growth slowed to 7.1% in 2016 despite recovery in
agriculture, It slowed to 7.1% in 2016 from 7.9% growth in 2015 partly due to currency demonetisa-
tion, and other reasons such as excess production capacity, problems that past overinvestment lefl on
corporate balance sheets and new bank lending inhibited by too many stressed assets.

OUTLOOK

Economic activity in both advanced economies and emerging market and developing economies is
forecast to accelerate in 2017-18, with global growth projected to be 3.4% and 3.6%, respectively as
per IMF outlook.

Federal Open Market Committee of U.S. expects U.S. GDP growth to rise to 2.1% in 2017, better than
the 1.9% estimated for 2016. The increase in gross domestic product is expected to remain at 2.1% in
2018 and drop 1o 1.9% in 2019, This forecast begins to take into account the impact of the new US
president's policies. This may lead to interest rate rises in the US.

Despite United Kingdon growth remaining relatively strong in second half of 2016, business invest-
ment was less strong last year and there have been some signs in carly 2017 that higher inflation is
starting to take its toll on retail sales growth. These less [avourable trends seem likely lo continue for
the rest of 2017 and into 2018 assuming the outcome of the Brexit negotiations remains unclear and
the pound continues to be relatively weak.

As per Asian Development Bank (ADB) India Outlook, the slowdown did reflect a continued slump in
investment in India, Moderately higher growth is projected as consumption picks up and government
initiatives boost private invesiment. ADB expects GDP growth rate of 7.4% and 7.6% for year 2017
and 2018, respectively.

The Bank’s conservative approach is in alignment with less favourable trends in UK economy and
slump 1 investment in India. However, moderately higher growth of Indian economy for year 2017
and 2018 and Indian government's initiative including tax reforms, real estate reforms and push on
infrastructure are expected to have positive impact on Bank's recovery aspects.
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REGULATORY FACTORS

On 19 December 2013, the PRA published its rules and supervisory statements which complement the
EU legislative package known as “CRD IV", covering prudential rules for banks, building societies
and investment firms.

CRD IV is intended to implement the Basel [T agreement in the EU, This includes enhanced require-
ments for quality and quantity of capital, a basis for new liquidity and leverage requirements, new
rules for counterparty risk. and new macro-prudential standards including a countercyclical capital
butfer and capital buffers for systemically important institutions. CRD IV also makes changes to rules
on corporate governance, including remuneration, and imroduces standardised EU regulatory repori-
ing - referred to as COREP and FINREP. These reporting requirements will specify the information
firms must report 10 supervisors in areas such as own funds, large exposures and financial information.

The Banking Reform Act received Royal Assent in December 2013, It brings into law structural and
cultural changes to the banking system by:

« introducing a ‘ring-fence” around the deposits of people and small businesses, to separate the
high street from the trading floor and protect taxpayers when things go wrong:

+ making sure the Prudential Regulation Authority can hold banks to account for the way they
separate their retail and investment activities, giving it powers to enforce the full separation of
individual banks;

« imposing higher standards of conduct on the banking industry by introducing a criminal sane-

ton for misconduct that leads to bank failure;

» giving depositors, protected under the Financial Services Compensalion Scheme, preference if
a bank enters insolvency;

e giving the government power to ensure that banks are more able to absorb losses; and

¢ Introducing a cap on payday loans.

Senior Managers and Cerfification Regimes: To strengthen Individual accountability in
banking, the PRA has set forward a new Senior Managers Regime (8MR) including Certification Re-
gime (CR) which has commenced from 7 March 2016. This has replaced the existing Significant In-
fluence Function (SIF) element of the existing Approved Persons Regime. The new regime introduces
a combined list of 18 Senior Management Functions to replace the existing controlled functions.
Whilst the number of functions has stayed the same, accountability 1s focused on a narrower number
of senior individuals in a firm, as some of the existing finctions are now being covered by the certifi-
cation regime. The 'CR' will operate alongside the Senior Persons Regime and apply to other Bank
staff whose actions or behaviour could significantly harm the Bank, its reputation or its customers.
This regime requires firms to assess that the Senior Managers and Certified Persons are fit and proper
through review of qualifications, training, competence and personal characteristics. A new set of
'Conduct Rules' have been prescribed as applicable to all stafl, with an additional set of conduct rules
applicable to Senior Managers and Certification Staff.

Additional Lliquidity Monitoring Metrics (ALMM); The ALMM has been designed 1o
supplement the information about a bank’s liquidity that is already captured by the (LCR), There is an
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overlap between the data that is needed to produce both reports. However, the ALMM also requires
granular data that is not needed for the LCR, including information about a bank’s top ten
counterparties and top ten 1ypes of funding across a multitude of maturity buckets

The ALMM legislation has been published in the Official Journal of the European Union and the first
reporting reference date was 30 April 2016, The report has been submitted on a monthly basis since
then always on or before due date.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARD (IFRS) 9: It is an accounting standard,
which sets out the requirements for recognition, impairment, derecognition, and general hedge ac-
counting of hinancial imstruments. [FRS 9 will replace International Accounting Standard (LAS) 39,
which dealt with the financial assets and financial liabilities, and will be mandatory for all companies
reporting under IFRS. The version of IFRS 9 issued in 2014 supersedes all previous versions and is
mandatorily effective for periods beginning on or after | January 2018 with early adoption permitted.
To cope with the new requirements the Bank bas initiated a project to ensure compliance with the
standard including a parallel run with TAS 39 during 2017.

IMPACT OF MARKET FACTORS ON BANK

The lag effect of structural infrastructure issue in Indian economy, and global slowdown were some of
the contributing factors towards default in some of the PNBIL corporate exposures, resulting in higher
level of impairment provisions. Even the ancillary units supporting infrastructure projects have suf-
fered on account of this delay. However as per the IMF forecast and government of India’s new initia-
tive in tax legislation, real estate and push on infrastructure spending, the growth rate is expected to
accelerate which may have positive impact on recovery aspect of PNBIL.

As at the end of the year the capital adequacy ratio. leverage ratio, liquidity coverage ratio and net sta-
ble funding ratio of the Bank are above the minimum regulatory requirements and individual capital
and liquidity guidance. Our funding is well diversified and our liquidity asset buffer, short term mter-
bank placements and balances with the Bank of England are positively maintained. keeping in view
the immediate hquidity requirement which may be triggered under stréssed conditions, A minimum of
90 days' survival period is considered for maintenance of the buffer. The Bank’s capital to risk ade-
quacy ratio is 21.70%, with core Tier | capital ratio being al 11.90%, above the requirements of CRD
IV, Bank raised fresh capital of S100 million in this Financial Year and converled $25 million of Up-
per Tier Il into Additional Tier I capital.

The Bank maimains a pro-active stance to compliance with the regulatory legislation and guidance,

FUTURE STRATEGY

The PNBIL Board has adopted a new business strategy developed with the help of an external advisor
whose research capability and expertise in the area were important contributors to the sirategic plan-
ning exercise. The strategy is UK and India centrie, based on a lower-risk business model where we
have the potential to win in the market and deliver a viable and sustainable business.

| S T s i 1
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The Bank will continue to align its business processes with changing times and with special emphasis
on the updating and leverage of IT and Management Information System infrastructure. The Bank
expects that the External Data Warehouse (EDW) project will be fully operational during the vear and
the Bank will be able to generate and submit system-generated returns for all regulatory reports. The
Bank will further make an endeavour to generate other management reports to enable it to better man-
age and direct its business.

The Bank has nearly completed its preparations to enhance/upgrade the existing transaction system,
Internet Banking Services Version updated with enhanced security features, introduction of mobile
app, and online rupee remittance system for non-customers, etc. These all are expected to occur in the
nexi financial year.

Given the economic environment, the Bank plans to have cautious and controlled growth, particularly
in new lending activities and it will continue to focus and enhance its credit risk framework 1o make it
more robust. Risk rating models will be kept updated based on the experience gained. Being a well-
capitahsed, highly liquid and having a diversified balance sheet, achieving disciplined growth will
continue to be the core objectives for the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable donations were made during the year (2016: $9.918).

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no reportable events after the balance sheet date, other than the Chairman’s resigna-
tion on § May 2017 and infusion of capital of $ 20 million on 2 June 2017 being remainder of PNB
Board's approval of a $120 million capital injection.

R s

Camilla Shaw
Company Secretary
Company number; 3781326

|, Moorgate, London
EC2R 6JH (UK)

26 June 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIREGTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
DIRECTORS' REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report, Directors'
Remuneration Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors are required to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Fi-
nancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the Di-
rectors must not approve the accounts uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

« properly select and apply accounting policies;

s present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, relia-
ble, comparable and understandable information;

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users 1o understand the impact of particular transactions, other evenis
and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance; and

e make an assessment of the Company's ability 1o continue as a going concern,

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial infor-
mation included on the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the prepara-
tion and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in ather jurisdictions.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

« The financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the Company; and

The management report, which is incorporated into the Directors' report, includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the pesition of the Company, together with a de-
seription of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

By order of the Board

Executive Directo

26 June 2017
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PUNJAB
NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

We have audited the financial statements of Punjab National Bank (International) Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2017 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, the Income Statement, the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes 1 to 36. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by
the European Union.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opmions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors® Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors,

Scope of the nudit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by [raud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the annual report to wdentify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If
we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

o pgive a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its
loss for the year then ended;

s have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the Strategic Report and the Direciors” Report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Capital Requirements (Country-by-Country Report-
ing) Regulations 2013

In our opinion the information given in note 36 to the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2017 have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the Capital

Requirements (Country-by-Country Reporting) Regulations 2013.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have nol been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us: or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
» ceriain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

o we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

(ot e Busi—

Caroline Britton ACA

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behall of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

26 June 2017
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2017 2016
Notes $'000 $°000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 490,010 240,205
Investment securities — held for trading 10 59,968 49,727
Derivative financial instruments 11 4319 5,994
Loans and advances to banks i2 205,154 310,453
Loans and advances to customers 3 605,202 1,071,990
Investment securities — available for sale 14 53,936 122,080
[nvestment securities — held to maturity 15 8,936 1,171
Property, plant and equipment 20 962 1,526
Intanigible assets 21 556 170
Deferred tax assets 22 25.802 3-,"_}'-'?9
Current tax assets = 3:39]
Prepaymenis and other receivables 23 524 696
Total assets 1,455,369 1,811,682
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 11 455 14,944
Deposits from banks 24 73,692 176,964
Deposits from customers 25 1,134,852 1,358,109
Subordinated liabilities and other borrowed funds 26 50,000 75,000
Deferred tax liabilities 22 - -
Other liabilities 27 4,513 8,034
Total liabilities 1,263,512 1,633,051
Equity
Share capital 28 299,631 174,631
Retained carnings (107,740} 3,5_1_]].
Fair value reserve 29 (34) 390
Total parent company shareholders’ equity 191.857 178,631
Total equity and liabilities 1,455369 1,811,682

The financial stalements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 20
June 2017.

MITW
Mana@ing Director




INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Interest income
Interest expense
MNet interest income

Net trading (loss) income

[ncome on interest rate derivatives
Net fee and commission incomie
Other aperating income

Operaling income

Staft related costs

Operating lease expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
General administrative expenses

Provision on impaired [tnancial assets

Loss before tax
Total tax credit

Loss after tax

Note

h th th 2

2017 2016

$7000 5°000
65,554 85,627
(31,412) (38,895)
34,142 46,732
(1,240) 5414
1,508 1,189
630 631
227 468
35267 54434
(6,752) (7.319)
(756) (08)
(862) (806)
(8,101) (7,392)
(152,134)  (71,846)
(133,338)  (33.587)
22,010 6,362
(111,328) (27,225)

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form part of these financial statements,
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2017 2016

5000 $'000
Laoss for the year (111,328) (27,225)
Other comprehensive loss
ltems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Net change in fair value on AFS invesiments (679) (1,612)
Tax relating to fair value change on AFS investments 77 322
Prior year amount transferred to profit and loss on AFS investments - net of
tax) 332 (71)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (424) {1 f3;5.];].
Total comprehensive loss attributable to equity shareholders (111,752} ! {23,536}

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form part of these financial statements.
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Issued Fair Retained  Total
31 March 2017 share value earnings  equity

capital  reserves

$'000 $7000 5000 $°000
Balance at | April 2016 174,631 390 3.610 178,031
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year - - (111,328) (111,328)
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Net change in fair value of AFS investments - (756) (22)* (778)
Net amount transferred to profit and loss - 332 - 332
Total ather comprehensive loss for the vear - (424) (22)* (446)
Total comprehensive loss for the vear . (424) (111.350) (111,774)
Transactions with owners recorded directly in
equity
Contributions by the owners
Issue of share capital 125,000 - - 125,000
Dividend on perpetual tier Il capital - - - -
Deferred tax benefii - - - -
Total contributions by and distributions to owners 125,000 - - 125,000
Balance at 31 March 2017 299,631 (34)  (107,740) 191,857

* Tax credit arising on AFS reserve movement,

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form part of these financial statements.
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

31 March 2016

Balance at 1 April 2015

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the yvear
Met change in fair value of AFS investments
Net amount transferred to profit and loss

Total other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Transactions with owners recorded directly in

equity

Contributions by the owners
[ssue of share capital

Dividend on perpetual tier 11 capital
Deferred tax benefit

Taonal contributions by and distributions 10 owners
Balance at 21 March 2016

Issued Fair val-
share ue re-
capital  serves
F000 5000
174,631 1,751
- (1,290)

= (71)

- [1 [ E‘ﬁl ]

= {1,361)
174,631 390

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Retained Total equi-

earnings ty
5000 $°000
31,745 208,127
(27,225)  (27,225)
- (1.290)

- (71)

= {_11361 ]
(27,225)  (28,586)
(1,137) (1,137)
227 227
(910) (910)
3,610 178,631

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Cash flows from operating activities

Total loss for the year

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of other intangible non-current assels
Diepreciation of property, plant and equipment
Provision for impairment losses on [inancial assets
Unrealised loss on exchange rate difference
Income tax credit

Changes in:

Held for trading financial assets
Loans and advances to customers
Deposits from banks

Onher Labilities and provisions
Available for sale financial assets
Fair value of derivatives

[.oans and advances 1o banks
Trade and other receivables
Depaosits from customers

Debt securities

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows uscd in other operating activities
Income tax credit

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets
Proceeds from maturity of held to maturity investments

Net cash Mows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Gross proceeds from issue of equity share capital
Gross proceeds from issue of subordinated liabilities
Dividend to subordinated debt holders

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March (note 9)

2017 2016
$°000 $°000
(111,328) (27,225)
197 98
663 707
152,134 71,846
90 - 185
(22,010) (6,361)
137,076 66,475
19,748 39,250
(10,241) 31,939
314,054 52,172
(103,272) 41,704
(3,614) (2,942)
68,324 (3,022)
(12,814) (9,092)
105,299 28,429
82 3280
(223,257) (96,834)
- e
135,161 45,347
154,909 84,597
3,345 (3,401)
158,254 81,196
(101) (163)
(583) (131)
(7,765) 397
(8,449) 103
125,000 |
(25,000) 10,000
- (1,136)
100,000 8,864
249,805 90,163
240,205 150,042
490,010 240,205
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

11 Reporting Entity

2]

Punjab National Bank (International) Limited is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in
the United Kingdom, The Bank is a fully owned subsidiary of Punjab National Bank, one of the
leading public sector banks of India. Address of the Bank's registered office is | Moorgate, Lon-
don (UK) EC2R 6JH. The Bank is primarily involved in accepting deposits, corporate and retail
lending and other banking activities.

Basis of Preparation

A, Statement of Compliance

Bank's financial statements bave been prepared in accordance with International Financial Re-
porting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union and as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The principal accounting policies adopted by the
Bank are set out in note 3.

The Bank's financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2017 were authorised for issue on
25 May 2017.

B. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

o derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value;

e financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value; and

e available for sale financial assets are measured at fair valoe.

C. Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the Directors are satisfied that
the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the loreseeable future,

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Punjab National Bank. Although Bank has recorded a
loss in the current financial year which arises mainly due to provisioning taken for specific im-
pairment in Joans. During the current year, the Bank has raised additional ordinary share capital
of $80 million and Additional Tier I capital of $20 million and also converted Tier 11 capital of
525 million into Additional Tier I capital.

The Bank is adequately capitalised at 31 March 2017 and excecds all the capital ratios required
by the regulators. The Bank's capital position, and its derivation, is set out in full in Note 34 to
these financial statements

I -



PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2] Basis of Preparation (continusd)

The authorised share capital for the Bank was increased from $250 million to $400 million on 28
March 2017.

After considering the above factors, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in [
preparimg the financial statements.

D. Functlional and Presentation Currency [

The Directors consider the US Dollar as the primary currency of the Bank (and hence the func-
tional currency of the Bank) as the majority of the income generating financial assets and a sig-
nificant component of the funding including the Equity and Tier II capital of the Bank are de-
nomindted in US Dollars, Transactions in foreign cwrencies are recorded in US Dollars at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the rates ruling at the end of the day in which the transaction arose.
Any resulting exchange differences are included in the statement of profit or loss. Monetary as-
sets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

E. Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. In particular, considerable judgement by management is required in the es-
timation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowances
required for impaired loans and receivables as well as allowances for impairment provision for
available-for-sale investment securities. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Further information about key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of esti-
mation and judgement, are set out in the relevant disclosure notes for the following areas:

» |denfification of impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets 1s impawred. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are provided for if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The Bank considers the following factors in as-
sessing objective evidence of impairment:

N e — ]




PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2] Basis of Preparation (continued)

» when the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments;

» when a counterparty files for bankruptcy protection (or the local equivalent) and this would
avoid or delay discharge of its obligation;

» where the Bank files to have the counterparty declared bankrupt or files a similar order in re-
spect of a credit obligation;

« where the Bank consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished finan-
cial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled
payments; or

« Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows of a group of financial assets.

» Allowances for impairment of loans and receivables

The Bank periodically reviews their financial assets carried at amortised cost to identify any early
signs of Nnancial deterioration. Additionally, for those loans where there is either a default or an
objective evidence of impairment, judgement is required by management in the estimation of the
amount and timing of expected cash flows, realisability and valuation of collateral and in certain
cases the availability and reliance on guarantees (including corporate and personal guarantees and
critical assessment of willingness and ability of the guarantors) in order to determine the level of
umpairment allowance to be recorded. Such estimates are based on assumptions about 4 number
of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. Manage-
ment’s estimates of future cash flows on individually impaired loans are based on historical expe-
rience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The expected recovery is subject to exe-
cution risks associated with the recovery of collateral in different jurisdictions; and fair assess-
ment i5 thus derived from management’s experience of such markets,

In addition to specific allowances against individually significant loans and advances, the Bank
also makes a collective impairment allowance against performing loans which represents an in-
terim step pending the identification of impairment losses on individual assets in the group of fi-
nancial assets that are collectively assessed for impairment. This takes into consideration factors
such as the risk rating of the counterparty, the probability of default, the loss given default, recent
loss history and the emergence period. The Bank considers an emergence period of 3 months 1o
be appropriate based on the nature of the counterparties, frequency of the review of loan portfolio
done by the management and past loan loss experience,

A change of one month in emergence period will result in an impact of $1,573 thousand (2016:
§1,877 thousand) on the value of the impairment provision.

» Impairment Losses on available for sale investments

Al cach balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence that an availa-
ble for sale asset is impaired. In case of securities in this category, where there has been signifi-
cant decline in value, and due 1o deterioration of credil ratings which has an impact on the
Bank’s estimated future cash flows of the investments, management applies judgement after con-
sidering other underlying circumstances to assess if an allowance for impatrment is required.
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2] Basis of Preparation (continued)

These factors include the collateral structure, market insight, the length of time over which the
decline has been observed and the current and expected financial performance of the counterpar-

ty.
¢ Held-to-maturity investment securities

Bank follows the guidance of IAS 39 in classifying certain non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. In making this judge-
ment, the Bank evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investiment securities to maturily.
[n the event the Bank fails to keep these investments to matunty other than for specific circum-
stances. it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale and the Bank will be
prevented from classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity for the current and the fol-
lowing two financial vears,

s Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or li-
ability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on-
going basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation tech-
niques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take
Mo account in pricing a transaction.

F. Standards and Interpretations
a) Standards and Interpretations effective in the Current Year

In the current year, the Company has applied amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (TASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that
begins on or after 1 April 2016. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclo-
sures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

e Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

¢ Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

e Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

b) Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effeclive

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Bank has not applied the following
new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective and (in some cases) had not
vet been adopted by the EU:
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2] Basis of Preparation (continued)

e IFRS 9; Financial Instruments

+ [FRS 13: Revenue from contracts with customers

o [AS 16 & TAS 38 (amendments): Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation

e TAS 16 & IAS 4] (amendments): Agriculture: Bearer Plants

+ 1AS 19 (amendments): Defined Benefit Plans: Emplovee Contributions

¢ [AS 27 (amendments): Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

e [FRS 10 & TAS 28 (amendments): Sale or Contribution of Assets between an [nvestor
and 1ts Associate or Joint Venture

* Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2010-2012: Amendments to : ITFRS82: Share-based Pay-
ments, [FRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operating Segments, [FRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement, TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
and IAS 38 Intangible Assets.

e Annual [mprovements to IFRSs: 2011-2013: Amendments to: [FRS 1 First-time Adop-
tion of Imternational Financial Reporting Standards, TFRS 3 Business Combinations,
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and IAS 40 Investment Property.

s Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2012-2014 Cycle Amendments to: [FRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Dis-
closures, IAS 19 Employee Benefits and IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods, except that IFRS 9 will impact
the measurement, disclosures and provisioning of financial instruments and IFRS 15 may have an
impact on revenue recognition and related disclosures. Beyond the mformation above, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 until & detailed
review has been completed.

31 Accounting policies

a) Revenue recognition
Interest

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest meth-
od. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash pay-
ments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where ap-
propriate, a shorier period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When cal-
culating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates. [uture cash flows considering all con-
tractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses, Interest income and ex-
pense presented in the statement of profit or loss includes:
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31 Accounting policies (continued)

+ Interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost calculat-
ed on an effective interest basis;

o Interest on available-for-sale investment securities calculated on an effective interest
basis.

* Arrangement fees recognised on an accrual basis. It 1s accounted when the services
have been provided or the significant act of delivering the services contracted by the
customer has been performed and is amortised aver the life of the loan.

Fees and commission

Fees and commissions include remittance charges, bills collection charges, LC charges. inci-
dental charges on deposit accounts, locker rent ete. Other fees and commission expense relate
mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the services are received.

Net trading income
Net trading income comprises gains less loss related to trading assets and liabilities, and in-
cludes all realised and unrealised fair value changes and foreign exchange differences.

b) Measurement - financial instruments
A. Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories; financial assets al fair val-
ue through the statement of profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investiments;
and available-for-sale financial assets.

i. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at
fair value through profit and loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by man-
agement if it meets the criteria as defined in TAS 39, Financial assets held for trading are ini-
tially recogmsed and measured at fair value in the statement of financial position. All changes
in fair value are recognised as part of trading income in profit and loss. For a purchase trans-
action, from trade date until settlement date, the asset remains an off balance sheet asset and it
is recognised on financial statements on the settlement date. For a sale transaction, asset con-
tinues o be on financial statements until settlement date and the transaction remains an off
balance sheet commitment until then.

e
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31 Accounting policies (continued)

ii. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Bank provides money or services
to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Loans and receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus any attributable transaction costs, and subsequenily measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less any specific impairment,

iii. Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Bank's management has the positive intention and abil-
ity to hold to maturity,

All investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given
and including acquisition charges associated with the investment, Afier initial recognition, in-
vestments which are classified as held to maturity are carried at amortised cost less impair-
ment if any.

iv. Avagilable for sale

Available for sale investments are non-derivative investments that are designated as available
for sale or are not classified as another category of financial assets. Available-for-sale invest-
ments comprise debt securities,

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Foreign ex-
change gain or losses on available-for-sale debt security investments are recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Other fair value changes, other than impairment losses, are recognised as other comprehensive
income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When the investment is sold, the gain
or loss accumulated in equily is re-classified to profit or loss,

B. Financial liabilities and equity insiruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into.

i, Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Bank
after deducting all liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recorded at the pro-
ceeds received, net of direct costs.
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3] Accounting policies (continued)

ii. Financial liabilities

All non-derivative financial liabilities (including deposits from customers, Banks and subordi-
nated liabilities) are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial liabili-
ties are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with in-
lerest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

iii. Deferred Income

The arrangement fee received on long-term corporate loans is amortised during the tenure of
the loan. the un-amortised amount is recognised ‘as deferred income in the financial siate-

ments,
c) Fdir value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or in
the absence of the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date.

When available, the Bank measures the lair value of an instrument using quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis,

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Bank establishes fair value using anoth-
er valuation technique. For derivatives, the valuation technique chosen makes maximum use
of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates specific to the Bank, incorporates all
factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with ac-
cepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation tech-
nigues reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk — return factors in-
herent in the financial instrument. The Bank calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for
validity using prices from observable market transactions.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the {rans-
action price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cas-
es, the fair value of a inancial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transac-
tion price. 1f such fair value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument (without modification or repackaging) or based on a val-
uation technique whose valuables include only data from the observable markets, then the dif-
ference 1s recogmised in profit or loss on initial recognition of the instrument,

Y ——
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31 Accounting policies (continued)

d) Offselting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an in-
tention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired; or where the Bank has transferred its contractual right to receive the cash flows of the
financial assets and either:

i, substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred; or
i substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have neither been transferred nor
been retained and the Bank has not retained control of the financial assets.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are extinguished, i.e. when the obligation is
discharged or cancelled or expired.

e) Transfer of financial assets

The Bank enters into transactions invelving sale and repurchase of securities resulting in the
transfer of financial assets, primarily debt securities,

Sale and repurchase agreements are transactions in which Bank sells a security and simultane-
ously agrees to repurchase it at a fixed price at a future date. Bank continues to recognise the
securities in Ltheir entirety in the statement of financial position because it retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liability is recognised for the obligation to
pay the repurchase price. Because the Bank sells the contractual rights Lo the cash flows of the
securities, it does not have the ability to use the transferred assets during the term of arrange-

ment.

f) Impairmeni of financial assets

I) Assets carried af amoriised cost

IF there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of esti-
mated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original effective rate. If in a subsequent pe-
riod, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised. the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it is now excessive by reducing the loan impairment allow-
ance account. The amount of any reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

e R R ]
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3] Accounting policies (continued)

i) Available for Sale Assets

The Bank assesses al each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that an
available-for-sale asset is impaired. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired in-
cludes observable data that come to the attention of the Bank such as a significant change in
price in excess of 20% or prolonged decline over nine months and due to deierioration of
credit ratings which has an impact on the Bank's estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets in relation to equity securities and, discounted cash flow approach is adopted for debt
securities,

If an impairment loss has been incurred, the cumulative loss (measured as a difference be-
tween the original cost and the fair value) less any impairment loss on that assel previously
recognised, is removed from equity and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Ifina
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be ohjectively related 1o an event oceurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

g) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Bank enters into derivative financial instruments to manage ils exposure to interest rate
and foreign exchange rate risk, including exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and
cross currency swaps. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each balance
sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately. A derivative
with a positive fair value 15 recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a nega-
tive fair value is recognised as a financial liability.

h) Property and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property and equipment are measured al cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost in-
cludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Purchased soft-
ware that is integral 1o the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the differ-
ence between the net proceeds from disposal and carrying amount of the item) is recognised
within other income in profit or loss.

(i) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the fiture economic bene-
fits of the expenditure will How to the Bank., Ongoing repairs and mainlenance are expensed
as incurred.

. T SR T
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31 Accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Depreciation

Items of property and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use. De-
preciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property and equipment using the
straight line basis over their useful estimated life. Depreciation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods of signifi-
cant items of property and equipment are as follows:

Fixtures including computers and accessories  3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or primary period of lease term.
whichever is lower,

(The computers, software, mobile phones and related accessories are depreciated at 30%

whereas furniture and Fixtures are depreciated at 20%)

(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Bank include software and the same is measured at cost less accumu-
lated amortisation and any impairment in value.

Subsequent expenditure on sofiware assets is capitalised only when it increases the future eco-
nomic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditure is ex-
pensed as incurred.

Software is amortised on a straight line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life,
from the date that it is available for use, The estimated useful life of software for the current
and comparative periods is over three years or the licence term whichever is the lower.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent include notes and coins on hand, balances with Banks and highly
liquid financial assets with original maturities of three manths or less from the acquisition date
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in their fair value and are used by the Bank
in the management of its short term commitments.

() Corporation tax/ deferred tax

The negative corporation lax charge in the profit and loss as a result of the loss situation repre-
sents the sum of the tax which can be vsed 1o offset past or future tax on profits.

Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other vears and it fur-
thers excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank's liability for current 1ax
is calculated using applicable tax rates.

Deferred lax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carry-
ing amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax ba-
sis used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet lia-
bility method,

R R = e Bl A
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3]

Accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and de-
ferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to al-
low all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the as-
set is realised or the liability is settled, Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of
profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred {ax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off
current (ax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Bank intends to settle its current fax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

(m) Recognition and measurement of provisions and confingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or con-
structive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of eco-
nomic henefits will be required to seitle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discount-
ing the expected future cash flows a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risk specific 1o the liability,

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Bank has approved a detailed and formal
restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publi-
cally. Future operating losses are not provided for.

(n) Share Capital and Reserves
(i) Additional tier | bonds

The Bank classifies capital instruments as equity instruments in accordance with the substance
of contractual terms of the instruments. The Bank’s perpetual bonds are not redeemable by the
holders and bear an entitlement to the distributions that is non-cumulative and at the discretion
of the Board of Directors. Bank may elect at its full discretion to cancel (in whole or in part)
the interest amount otherwise scheduled to be paid on interest payment dates. In case of oc-
currence of the trigger event the bonds shall be converted into ordinary shares. Accordingly,
they are presented as a component of issued capital within equity, Distributions thereon are
generally recognised as dividend out of total comprehensive income attributable to the equity
shareholders.
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3] Accounting policies (continued)

(ii) Fair value reserves
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available for

sale financial assets until the assets are derecognised or impaired.

(o) Operaling lease commitments

Operating leases payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(p) Employee benefits

The Bank has two pay groups of employees in UK — those on secondment to the Bank from
the Parent Bank and those who are locally recruited. The employees on secondment are gov-
erned by the salary structure approved by the Government of India as well as by the Board
of Directors of the Parent Bank. Their salary, perquisites and allowances are fixed accord-
ingly. Salary to the locally recruited staff is per Board approved Human Resource Policy.

No bonus, overtime or incentive is paid by the Bank to its emplovees.

The Bank has subscribed to a defined contribution pension plan under which the Bank pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an employee benelit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which ser-
vices are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the ex-
tent that a cash refund or a reduction in fiture payments is available.

4] Operating Segments

The Bank undertakes the business of commercial banking which is carried on within the Unit-
ed Kingdom. Its activities are currently managed on a centralised business model so the reve-
nue and the costs are not atiributable to any one operating or geographic segment.

The Bank has one class of business and all other services are ancillary to this. Its activities are
currently managed on a centralized business model. The Board reviews all the information for
the business as a whole as these ancillary activities do not have their own standalone reporting

environment and protocols internally.

No revenue transaction with a single external customer or counter party amounted to 10% or
more of the total revenue for the vear.
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5]

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated alter charging the following;

Interest expense

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Operating leases:
Lease rental expenses

Fee pavable to the Bank’s auditor for the audit of the Bank’s an-
nual accounts

Fee payable to the Bank’s auditor for other services:
- Audit related assurance services
- Non-audit services

Included in net trading income:
Income related to:

Foreign exchange

Investment securities - held for trading

2017
$°000
31,412

665
197
862

756

168

308
37

345

2017

S'000

1,318
(2,558)

(1,240)

2016
5000
38,895

708

=]
o =

259

28
26

2016
57000

3,853
1561

5,414
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5]

Operating Profit (continued)

Included in operating income:

Income on services related to:
Payment and settlement
Retail banking

Other operating income

Included in general adminisirative expenses:

Marketing costs

Establishment expenses

Legal, professional and audit fees

Cost on postage. telephones and telegrams
Other administration costs

Included in interest income:

Interest accrued on overdraft accounts
Interest accrued on demand and term loans
Discount on bills

Interest accrued on interbank placements

Coupon/premium accrued on investment securities

Arrangement fee on loans

Included in interest expense:

literest expenses on term deposits

Interest expenses on saving deposits
Interest expenses on interbank borrowings
Interest expenses on subordinated liabilities

2017 2016

$7000 3000
174 339

52 127

1 2

227 468
2017 2016
$°000 $°000
78 175
738 896
4,446 3,898
352 471

2,487 1,952

8,101 7,392
2017 2016
£°000 $°000
10,846 14,844
45,159 57,391
34 36
1,245 1,009
5,712 8,888
2,558 3,459

65554 85627
2017 2016
$°000 $°000
25,453 33,477
287 342
1,888 1,907
3,784 3,169
31,412 38,895

]
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6] Employee Expenses

2017 2016
5000 5000
Wages and salaries 4,577 4,971
Contribution towards defined employee contribution plan 113 139
Other employee benefits 1,442 1,599
Social security costs 620 608
6,752 7,319
Included in other emplovee benefits are: 2017 2016
S7000 $°000
Accommodation cost 868 972
Medical insurance and expense 114 100
Pension contributions for staff in India 8 8
Other expenses 452 5200
442 1,600
Average number of employees 106 104
There are no share based payments to employees.
71  Directors’ Emoluments
2017 2016
$'000 $’000
Emoluments 419 457
The emoluments of Directors disclosed above include salary and Director Fee.
2017 2016
n i oy 000 £000
Emoluments of highest paid Director 200 211

Contributions to external pension scheme included in the above -

e L
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8]

Corporation Tax

Components of corporation tax credit

Current corporation tax credit
Current corporation lax charge

Deferred corporation tax credit
Effect of rate changes
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax credit

Reconciliation of corporation tax charge to accounting profit

Loss before tax

Corporation tax at 20% (2016: 20%)

Tax effect of fair value profits direct to reserves

Tax effect of non-deductible depreciation

Tax effect of other non-deductible expenses/non-taxable income
Tax effect of FX and rate changes

Previous year overprovision

Tax credit

Current corporation tax credited to equity

Credit arising on AFS reserve movement

Tax effective rate

2017 2016
$'000 $°000
62 (3,042)
(586) -
(21,486) (3,320)
(22,010)  (6,362)
2017 2016
$°000 _$°000
(133,338) (33,587)
(26,668) (6,717)
(73) (19)

73 7

3 (30)

4,586 333
69 £
22,010y (6,362)
2017 2016
$7000 $7000
22 322

16% 19%

Finance Act 2013 enacled a reduction in the UK ¢orporation tax rate to 20% with effect from |
April 2015. Finance (No. 2) Aer 2015 and Finance Act 2016 enacted reductions in the UK cor-
poration lax rate 1o 19% with effect from | April 2017 and 17% with effect from 1 April 2020,
respectively. These reductions m the fax rate will impact the current tax charge in future peri-

ods.




PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

9]

10]

1]

Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016
$000 $7000
Cash on hand 250 557
Cash at bank (including balance held with central banks) 464,760 239,648
Cash equivalent 25,000 -

490,010 240,205

Investment securities - Held For Trading

2017 2016
§7000 $7000
Treasury bills 59,968 49,727

The Bank has classified its holding of US treasury bills as trading assets which have been meas-
ured at fair value through profit and loss. No asset held under this category is pledged and all re-
main unencumbered.

The table below sets out the credit quality of trading debi securities.

Rating 2017 2016
Government Treasury Bills $°000 $000
US Treasury Bills AAA 59,968 49,727
Total 59,968 49,727

Investments in the trading portfolio, along with treasury bills held under AFS, are held mainly to
maimtain liquid asset buffer. Regular churning of such securities is made to ensure adequate mar-
ketability.

Exposure to Derivatives

The Bank deals in various currencies and it is not always possible to match the asset and liability
in each currency. As a result, the Bank uses currency swaps to eliminate currency risk on long or
short term currency positions. These derivatives are revalued daily and any change in their Fair
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

A major portion of the Bank's assets are on [loating rate of interest where base rate is floating
and linked to LIBOR or BOE rate with a fixed margin thereupon. A major portion of liabilities of
the Bank are on fixed rate of interest. The Bauk uses interest rate swaps to eliminate interest rate
nisk i various reset buckets, Fair value of all derivatives is as below;
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11] Exposure to Derivatives (continued)

2017 2016
Positive ~ Negative Positive Negative
Fair Val-  Fair Val-  Fair Fair
ue ue Value Value

7000 $'000 - §°000 $1000

Cross currency swap 4,097 455 4;__[&7- 1_4,§4_4.
Interest rate swap 222 - 1.807 -
4,319 455 5994 14944

All the deals under cross currency foreign exchange swaps and interest rale swaps are over-the
counter deals and none of them is with Central Counterparties. Table below shows analysis of
counterparty credit exposure arising from derivative lransactions as at 31 March 2017,

Nature of Nominal Nominal Positive Negative
Counterparty Amount— Buy  Amount— Sell Fair Value Fair Value
Transaction Transaction
57000 §000 3000 5000

Cross currency  Bank 325,871 322,696 4,097 455
swaps
Interest rate Bank 419,386 419,383 222 -
swaps

745,257 742,079 4,319 455

Table below shows analysis of counterparty credit exposure arising from derivative (ransactions
as at 31 March 2016.

Nature of Nominal Nominal Positive Negative
Counterparty Amount - Buy  Amount - Sell  Fair Value Fair Value
Transaction Transaction
5000 $'000 $'000 5000
Cross currency  Bank 482,898 493,595 4,187 14,944
swaps
[nterest rate Bank 253,692 251,885 1,807 -
5“"3]}5
793,590 745,480 5,994 14,944

|l el =
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12] Loans and advances to banks

Bills negotiated and discounted
Term loans against stand-by letters of credit/buyers credit

Direct loans to banks
Interbank placements of original maturity of more than
three months

Less impairment provisions

Met Loans and advances to banks

2017 2016
$'000 - $°000
38 20,365
196,942 286,483
8,154 3,605
205,154 310,453
205,154 310,453

At 31 March 2017 $140,687 thousand (2016: $215,025 thousand) of loans and advances to
banks are expected to be realised more than | 2 months after the reporting date.

13} Loans and advances to customers

Bills negotiated and discounted
Customer overdrafis

Term loans

Total

Less impairment provisions'”

Net Loans and advances to customers

2017 2016
$°000 $°000
734 98
230,533 315414
640,413 870,728
871,680 1,186,240
(266,478)  (114,250)
605,202 1,071,990

Impairment provisions fuchude specific eredit provisions of 258,558 thowsand (200 6: S108,620 thousand), ather pro-
vigiens of 83,200 thoysand gnd eollective provision of 34,720 thousgnd (2006 85 630 thewsand).

At 3] March 2017 §377,271 thousand (2016: $561,112 thousand) of loans and advances to cus-
tomers are expected to be realised more than 12 months after the reporting date.

o T T sy s
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14] Investment Securities — Available for Sale

2017 2016
$000 $2000
Marketable debt securities 53,936 122,080

Al 31 March 2017, $49,822 thousand (2016: $122.080 thousand) of investment securities
(available for sale) are expected to be realised more than 12 months after the reporting date,

15] Investment Securities — Held to Maturity (HTM)

2017 2016

000 $°000

Debt securities 11,122 3,451
Less: Impairment (2,186). (2,280)
Net book value of HTM securities 8,936 1,171

Refer to note 16 for details of fair value of investments which are Held to Maturity (HTM).

At 31 March 2017 $8,936 thousand (2016: $1,171 thousand) of HTM investments are expected
1o be realised more than 12 months afier the reporting date.

161 Financial Instruments

A. Financial Instruments carried at amortised cost

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and incorporates the Bank’s estimate of
fair values of the held to maturity investment securities not presented on the Bank’s balance
sheet at fair value. The fair values in the table below may be different from the actual amount
that will be received / paid on the settlement or maturity of the financial instrument.

Carrying amount Fair value
2017 2016 2017 2016
§°000 $000 $'000 5000
Held 1o Marurity Securities 11,122 3,451 8,895 1,112
Less Impairment provision (2,186) (2,280) - -
Net Book Value 8,936 1,171 8,895 1,112

The total impairment provision recorded for Held to Maturity securities is against the Bank’s
investment in one credit linked note of an investment banking company which is in liguidation.
The provision for impairment is for the difference in amount between the book value and the
market value of the credit linked note.
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16] Financial Instruments (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost incorporates the Bank’s esti-
mate of the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an order-
ly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal market or in
the absence of that to the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date.

The fair value of all remaining financial instruments carried at amortised cost approximates the
book value, as given below:

Carrying amount and fair

value
2017 2016
$000 $'000
Assets
Customer and bank overdrafis 133,178 266,355
Term and bank loans 668,232 1,092,020
Interbank placements 33,154 3,605
Bills purchased 792 20,463
Liabilities
Interbank deposits 71,068 164,201
Subordinated debis 50,000 75,000
Savings accounts 139,540 142,878
Current accounts 147.763 134,177
Fixed term deposits 850,173 1,1]93,317
Bills payable 993 212

The basis of measurements of fair value which approximates to carrying value are as follows:

= [Inter-bank deposits are generally of short dated maturity and hence the resultant impact on
fair value of the same is considered insignificant.

=  Subordinated debts are carried at rate of 6 month LIBOR +4/5% and the interest rate is re-
set every six months, Consequently, the resultant impact on fair value of the subordinated
debis is considered insignificant.

* The fair value of savings accounts and current accounts with no fixed maturity is assumed
to be equal to the carrying value.

= Fair value of term deposits is expected to approximate the carrying value, since there has
been insignificant change in interest rates in GBP deposits (during the year) which consti-
tute a significant proportion of the Bank's term deposit base.

The majority of the overdrafts and term loans are floating rate loans with interest rate reset be-
tween 3 lo 6 months and consequently the resultant impact on fair value of the term loans is
considered insigmficant. However, no adjustment has been made to the fair value for change in
credil spreads of counterparties. Impaired loans are reflected at net carrying value

| - = |
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

161 Financial Instruments (continued)

= et of provision and that is the best estimate of fair value for such loans.

= Inter-hank placements are generally of short dated maturity and hence the resultant impact
on fair value of the same is considered insignificant.

B. Financial Instruments carried at fair value and amortised cost

Financial instruments carried at fair value in the financial statements are Held for Trading se-
curities (note 10). Available for sale securities (note 14) and Derivatives (note 11},

Financial instruments carried at amortised cost in the financial statements are loans and ad-
vances to banks (note 12), loans and advances to customers (hote 13}, investment securities
held to maturity (note 15), deposits from banks (note 24) and deposits from customers (note
25).

Categories of these assets are as below:

2017
Financial Assets: Note Levell Level2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities — 10 59,968 - - 59,968
held for trading
Investment securities — 14 - 53,936 = 33,936
available for sale
Derivative assets held for 11 = 4319 £ 4,319
risk management
Loans and advances to 12 - 205,154 - 205.154
banks
L.oans and advances to 13 - - 605,202 605,202
customers
Investment securities held 13 - - 8.936 8.936
o maturity

50968 263,409 614,138 037.515
Financial Liabilities Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative liabilities held 11
for risk management - 4535 - 453
Deposits from banks 24 - 73,692 . 73,692
Deposits from customers 25 . . 1,134,852 1,134 852

- 74,147 1,134,852 1,208,999




PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

16] Financial Instruments (continued)

2016

Financial Assets: Note
Investment securities - 10
held for trading

Invesiment securities - 14

available for sale
Derivative assets held for it
risk management

Loans and advances 1o 12
banks

Loans and advances to 13
CUSIOMErs

Investment securities 5

held to maturity {(amor-
tised cost)

Financial Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities held 11
for risk management

Deposits from banks 24
Deposits from customers 25

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1

49,727

49,727

Level 2 Level 3 Total
- = 49727
122,080 122,080
5,994 - 5,994
310,453 - 310,453
- [.071.990 1.071.990
- 1,171 1,171
438,527 1,073,161 1,561,415

14,944

= 14,944
176,964 - 176,964
= 1,358,100 1,358,109
191,908 1,358,109 1.550,017

= Level 1 - Valuations based on quoted prices available in active markets for the same in-

strument. Securities included in Level 1 are US Treasury Bills.

= Level 2 - Valuations based on guoted prices in markets that are not active, or based on
pricing models for which significant inputs can be corroborated by observable market data
(e.g. interest rates or exchange rates). Securities included in Level 2 are all securities
presently held in AFS except US treasury bills, loans and advances to Banks, Deposits
from Banks, all derivatives and some investments held to maturity.
= Level 3 - Fair value measurements that include unobservable inputs that have a signifi-
cant effect on the fair value measurenient in its entirety, The financial instruments includ-
ed in level 3 are loans and advances to customers. deposits from customers and some in-

vestments held to maturity.

* No transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 have been made during the year.
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171 Provision on Impaired Financial Assets

Loans and advances as in notes 12 and 13 above and HTM securities as in note 15 above in-
clude impaired assets and assets with renegotiated terms as below:

Loans
and Ad- HTM
vances Securities
5000 5000
Gross balance of impaired assets 299,392 2,186
Less: specific impairment (258,558) (2,186)
Net Balance 40,834 -
Mevement in impairment provision during the year:
Specific allowances for impairment 2017 2016
$,000 $,000
Balance at 1 April 110,900 37,784
Impairment loss for the year
Charge for the year 155354 76,144
Recoveries/Reversals (5,510) (3,028)
Write offs - T
Balance at 31 March 260,744 I__l"i_l',ﬁil'['}:
Out of above
Provision for impairment of loans and advances* 258,558 108,620
Provision for impairment of HTM securities 2,186 2,280

260,744 110,900

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at 1 April 5,630 6,900

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 910) (1,270)

Balance at 31 March 4,720 5,630
Total allowances for impairment 265,464 1 16,5311

The total charge to profit and loss in respect of impairment
is as below:

Impairment charge on loans and advances 149028 71,846
[mpairmenl charge on investments held to maturity (94) s
Allowanee on doubtful interest receivable 3,200 -

152,134 71,846

& . N c
Includes reserves on renegotioted logns for discopnting the expecred cash flows i carvent marker yields
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

18] Exposure to Credit Risk and Availability of Collateral Security

The table below presents the Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk of its on-balance sheet
and off-balance sheet financial instruments at 31 March 2017, before taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet instruments, the maximum
exposure 1o credit risk is the carrving amount reported on the balance sheel, For off-balance
sheet mstruments, the maximum exposure to credit risk represents the ¢ontractual nominal
amounts. The Bank’s exposure to credit risk is well spread across different sectors. The Bank is
affected by the general economic conditions in the territories in which it operates. The Bank has
set limits on the exposure to any counterparty and group of counterparties, Industry Sector Ex-
posure and Geographical Exposure; and credit risk is also spread over the Banks, Retail and
Corporate customers,

The Bank’s primary exposure to credit risk has decreased by $305,289 thousand when com-
pared to March 2016 primarily due to paying off the loans by the customers,

Otherwise the loans and advances have decreased by $404,737 thousand.

2017 2016

$7000 $’000
On balance sheet exposure
Bilateral and syndicated loans and advances to custom- 870,947 1,186,142
ers _
Loans and advances to customers under Letter of Cred- 196,941 286,483
it/Stand by Letter of Credit/ Letter of Comfort by banks ' _
Inter Bank placements and Cash balances with banks 498,164 2'4'3,311
Bills purchased directly from customers 734 08
Bills purchased under LC/Guarantee of banks 58 20,365
Securities Held to Maturity — Banks 5.615 2,429
Securities Held to Maturity — Non Banks 5,507 1,022
Securities available for sale - Banks 26,381 68,427
Securities available for sale — Non Banks 27,555 53,653
Derivative Financial Instraments 4,319 5,994
Total — A 1,636,221 1,868,424
Off balance sheet exposure
Non-Bank Commitments (LCs/LGs) 1,507 1,972
Commitments under LCs/Guarantees by Banks - 1,653
Total-B 1,507 3,625
Undrawn Credit Facilities — Non Banks 38,842 109,810
Undrawn Credit Facilities — Banks - -
Total— C 38,842 109,810
Total Exposure subject to Credit Risk (A+B+C) 1,676,570 1,981,859
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

18] Exposure to Credit Risk and Avajlabl|ity of Collateral Security (continued)

Bifurcation of total exposure subject to eredit risk into bank and non-bank exposure is as be-

low,;
2017 2016
$000 57000
Exposure on Banks 731,478 629,260
Non-Bank Exposure 945,092 1,352,599
Total 1,676,570 1,981,859
Collateral:

Collateral is held to mitigate credit risk exposures and risk mitigation policies determine the
eligibility of collateral types. Collateral types that are eligible for risk mitigation include: De-
posits held under lien: residential, commercial and industrial property: fixed assets such as
ships, plant and machinery; marketable securities; commodities: current assets including book
debts; bank guarantees; and letters of credit. For certain types of lending — typically asset fi-
nancing — the right to take charge over physical assets is significant in terms of determining
appropriate pricing and recoverability in the evem of defanlt.

For loans and advances to banks and customers, the Bank held the following amounts of col-
lateral, adjusted where appropriate.

A, Exposure on Banks: Both for direct exposure to Banks (Placements and Bank Balances) and
for exposure on Banks due to Letter of Credit/Guarantee/Letter of Comfort issued by the
Banks, there are no separate collateral securities.

B. Non-Bank exposure is collaterally secured as below as at 31 March 2017:

Amount n S million Retail Exposure Non-refail Exposure Total

o ATCHE e ATWMCH pg  Amemc
Irternally rated AAA to A® 4,66 4.26 58.41 38.89 63.07 43.15
Interally rated BB 1o B*® 24.70 24 25 218.7% 146,79 24344 171,04
Internally rated C&D (44 (44 627 6.27 6.71 .71
Others Exempted Category 24.13 21.84 73.39 34063 09,52 56,47
Fully Performing 53.93 50.79 358.85 126.58 412.78 1737
Performing past due below Ui 5.50 549 6218 36.34 67.77 61,85
diys
Performing Forbome: Lin- 445 3% 5033 46.45 55.31 50.41
Impaired
Performing Forborne: hnpaired - - 13.59 13.23 13.39 [3.23
Performing Impaired- Ciher (.65 0.52 09.33 EX] 10.48 3.53
Total Performing 64.65 60.76 495.28 345.63 559.93 406.39
Non-Pertforming mere than 90 246 222 105,76 8358 108,22 £7.50
diays past doe-Non Impaired
Non-Performing Impaired 1.21 L56 27574 169,38 276.95 170.24
Total Nan-Performing 167 308 IBL50 254.96 385.17 158.04
Total 68.32 63.84 876.77 600.59 945.09 (64,42

The above is shown based on the current credit policy categorisations

Retail leuns are loons fo individual and small enterprises up to Euro | million
*Internal ratings based on PNBIL rating model and alse lnelude loans where internal raring iv exempied viz, loans agains

deposits/'SBLCs eie.
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18] Exposure to Credit Risk and Availability of Collateral Security (eontinued)

Comparative data for 31 March 2016 1s as below;

Neither past due nor impaired:
Internally rated AAA 10 A%
Internally rated BB 1o B*

Total neither past due nor impaired

Past due bt not ndhividually impaired:

Up o 90 days

Over 90 days

Total Past due but not mdividually im-
paired

Loans with renegotiated terms**
Individually impaired loans:

Doubtful category

Luss category

Total impaired

Tatal

94.65

Reail Exposure
Fxposure  Amount Coblat-

erafised
44.01 41.31
31.20 2880
75.21 70.11
15.22 14.61
(.93 (.89
16.15 15.50
1.99 1.96
0.88 (.88
0.42 0.37
1.30 1.25
88.02

Amount in $ milliown

MNon Retail Exposure

Exprosure

17451
545.21
T20.02

147.06
127:15
274.21

67.55
124,23

15.73
139.96

1,201.74

Total
A pumit € ofl ag- Expasure Amount Caolbar-
eralised erallsed

15844 218,82 19950
400.41 576.41 42921
558.90 79523 629.01
135.21 162.28 149.82
105.19 128.08 106.08
240.40 29036 25590
6l.13 69.54 63.09
11722 125.11 11810
1179 16.15 12.16
129.01 141.26 130.26
989.44 1,29639 1,078.26

*frternal ratings based on PNBIL rating model and alse include loans where internal reting is exempred viz. loans against

deposits’SBLCy vte.

=P Al foans with renegotiated termy are performing as per the terms of renegoriation; and crrrently theve are no past die or
impaired loans inthis caregory. There are no forborne loans as on 31 March 2006 (31 March 2015: Nil).
Retail loans are loans to individiial and small entevprises up to Ewro | million.

While arriving at the value of collateral:

= Value of personal and corporate guarantiees has not been considered.
* Value of securities in accounts where Bank has pari-passu charge is based on the book value
in the latest available audited financial statements, where available, and is considered pro-rata

in proportion 1o the exposure in the entity.

* The collateral values reported have been adjusted for the effects of over-collateralization.
For non-bank HTM securities, current market value of the security has been considered.

The requirement for collateral is not a substitute for the ability to pay, which is the primary
consideration for any lending decisions. In determining the financial effect of collateral held
agams! loans neither past due or impaired, we have assessed the significance of the collateral
held in relation to the type of lending. While doing so, where corporate or personal guarantees
exist, they are not classified as sccured exposures. But on case by case basis, the guarantees
could be relevant as an important risk mitigation measure.
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18]

Exposure to Credit Risk and Availability of Collateral Security (continued)

Percentage of collateral held in non-bank exposure is as below:

Exposure
Percentage of value of collateral to exposure $ million
2017 : 2016
100% and above* 633.17 1,104.60
76% 10 99% 27.38 26.55
51% 10 75% 3222 9.04
26% 1o 50% 5.79 1.86
11%1025% 25.24 11.42
Below 10% 10.93 20.10
Unsecured 210.35 179.12
Total 945.08 1,352.69
Average percentage of availability of Collateral® 74.82% 79.71%

*exeluding fmpact af over-collateralisarion,

Past due but not impaired

Loans that are *past due but not impaired’ are those for which contractual interest or principal
payments are past due but the Bank believes that there is no impairment on the basis of the
level of security or collateral available and/or the stage of collection of amounts owed 1o the
Bank.

Commercially re-negotiated

Loans in which renegotiation or refinancing did not qualify as forbearance. A refinancing or
modification in terms and conditions of repayment on account of certain events, even if, the
customer is not facing any financial difficulty are classified as commercially re-negotiated
loans.

Forborne
Loans are treated as forborne if a concession has been made and the debtor is facing or about
to face difficulties in meeting its fimancial commitments (“financial difficulties™).

Non-Performing

Loans which are more than 90 days past due or where the obligor has been found impaired in
accordance with the IFRS accounting framework and/or the debtor is assessed as unlikely to
pay its credit obligations in full without realisation of collateral, regardless of the existence of
any past due amount or of the number of days past due.

Impaired

The Bank regards a loan and advance as impaired if there is objective evidence that a loss
event has occurred since initial recognition and the loss event has an impact on future estimat-
ed cash flows from the asset.
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18] Exposure to Credit Risk and Availability of Collateral Security (continued)

The table below sets out a reconciliation of changes in the gross amount of impaired loans and
advances to customers.

2017 2016

$7000 $000

Impaired loans and advances 1o customers a1t 1 April 144,987 82,530
Net repayments in existing impaired loans and advances (44) (1,4_3_1_5_}'
Classified as impaired during the vear 156,048 63,904
Other movements/exchange rate fluctuations (1,599) 39
Impaired loans and advances to customers at 31 March 299,392 144,987

Detail of impairment allowance for loans and advances is given at Note 17.

The table below sets out a reconciliation of changes in the gross amount of impaired HTM in-

vestments:
2017 2016
$°000 5_}'!1_"]0
Impaired investments held to maturity at | April 2,429 2.827
Net Repaymenis in existing impaired investments (243) (398)
Impaired investments held until maturity at 31 March 2,186 2,429

Details of impairment allowance for HTM investments is given at Note 17.

internal Rafings/Scoring

The Bank has developed internal rating/scoring models in co-ordination with the Risk Man-
agement Division of Parent Bank. All non-bank credit counterparties (except those secured by
deposits with Bank/Parent, temporary overdrafis, ad hoc facilities and loans to staff members)
are rated on these models. Scoring is given on various financial and non-financial parameters.
Rating is allocated based on overall score on the financial strength, creditworthiness and re-
payment capacity of the borrower.

Derivatives, sale and repurchase agreements

The Bank mitigates the credit risk of derivatives by entering into International Swaps and De-
rivative Association (ISDA) master netting agreements. Under these agreements, when a cred-
it event such as a default occurs, all outstanding transactions under the agreement are lermi-
nated, the terminal value is assessed and only a single net amount is due or payable in seitle-
ment of all transactions. The Bank’s sale and repurchase transactions are also covered by mas-
ter agreements with netting terms similar to [SDA master netting agreements. The ISDA and
similar master netting agreements ¢reate

e — v ——]
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18] Exposure to Eurozone Countries

for the parties to the agreement a right to the set-off of recognised amounts that is enforceable
only following an event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparties
or following other predetermined events.

The Bank has no direct sovereign exposure (as defined by the European Banking Authority
‘EBA) to any of the Eurozone countries. (Gross exposure to other counterparties in the Euro-
zone countries as at 31 March 2017 is as below:

$000 |
2017 2016
Name of the Exposure  Exposureto Total Ex-  Exposure  Exposureto  Total Ex-
Country to Banks  Corporates posure to Banks  Corporates  posure
Belgium 341 25,233 25,574 478 27,842 28,320
Romania - - - - 5,879 5,879
Germany 123 10,986 11,109 958 8.624 9,582
France 9 2,652 2.661 ) 3,727 3,729
Ireland - 7,986 7,986 - 8,470 8,470
Netherland - 10,489 10,489 - 19,543 19,543
Luxembourg - - - - 15,162 15,162
Total 473 57346 57,819 1,438 89,247 90,685

An amount of $9,101 thousand is to be received after 12 months.
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20] Property and Equipment

At 31 March 2017

Cost

At 1 April 2016
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2017

Depreciation

At 1 April 2016
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2017

Net book value
At 1 April 2016

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016

Cost

ALl April 2015
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2016
Depreciation
At 1 April 2015

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Net book value
ALl April 2015

At 31 March 2016

Leasehold im-
provements
£000

2,382

2,382

_—

(1,828)
(285)

(2,113)

554

269

Leasehold im-
provements
5000

2,382

2,382

(1,504)
(324)

(1,828)

878

554

Fixtures and
fittings
£000

3,949
101

4,050

(2,977)
(380)

(3,357)

972

693

Fixtures and
fittings
£000

3,786
163

3,949

(2,593)
(384)

2.977)

1,193

972

Total
57000

6,331
101

6,432

—_—

(4,805)
(665)

(5,470)

1,526

962

Total
$T000

6,168
163

6,331

(4,097)
(708)

(4,805)

2,071

1,526

(P e iy QU]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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21] Intangible Assets

31 March 2017

Software

5000
Cost
At 1 April 2016 1,711
Additions 583
At 31 March 2017 2,294
Amortisation
At 1 April 2016 (1,541)
Charge for the year (197)
Al 31 March 2017 (1,738)
Carrying value
AL 1 April 2016 170
At 31 March 2017 556
31 March 2016

Software

§000
Cost
At 1 April 2015 1,580
Additions 131
At 31 March 2016 1,711
Amortisation
At 1 April 2015 {1,444)
Charge for the year 97)
At 31 March 2016 (1,541)
Carrying value
ALl April 2015 136
Al 31 March 2016 170

221 Deferred Tax Asset
2017 12016
$'000 £'000

Al 1 April 3,779 (90)
Credit for the year 22,023 3,869
At 31 March 25,802 3,779
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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22] Deferred Tax Asset (continued)

The deferred tax asset relates to unused lax losses of $3.8 million and of $21.9 million for 2016
and 2017 respectively and to $16 thousand lor decelerated depreciation

Deferred income laxes are caleulated on all temporary differences and losses under the liability
method, Finance (No. 2) Act 2015 and Finance Act 2016 enacted reductions in the UK corpora-
tion lax rate to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017 and 17% with effect from 1 April 2020 re-
spectively. These enacted rates have been applied in the calculation of the deferred 1ax asset,

The bank expects that the deferred tax asset will be exceeded by future years™ taxable profits
arising {rom the banks change in business focus and recoveries from impaired assets. Deferred
lax on losses has been recognised on the basis that there will be no restriction on the Bank’s
ability o offset these losses against future profits. However, it is anticipated that a 50% loss
offset restriction will be enacted later in 2017 and effective from 1 April 2017. This would
therefore extend the time period over which losses could be recovered.

23] Prepayments and other Receivables

24]

2017 2016
1000 $1000
Current prepayments 518 679.
Other receivables 6 17
524 696
Deposits from Banks

2017 2016
$°000 $7000
Current accounts from banks 2,624 5,023

Overdrafts in Nostro accounts
with banks 6 5,597
Fixed term deposits - 2,143
Inter bank borrowings 71,062 164,201
Total deposits from banks 73,692 176,964

At 31 March 2017 SNIL (2016: $50,000 thousand) deposits from Banks are expected to be set-
tled more than 12 months after the reporting date.

C Dl o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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25] Deposits from Customers

2017 2016

$'000 $°000

Current accounts 145,139 123,557
Savings accounts 139,540 142,878
Fixed term deposits 850,173 1,091,674
Total deposits from customers 1,134,852 1,358,109

At 31 March 2017 $394,336 thousand (2016: $448,443 thousand) of deposits from customers are
expected to be settled more than 12 months after the reporting date.

26] Subordinated Liabi|ities and other Borrowed Funds

2017 2016
5000 §°000
Subordinated debt 50,000 75,000

This represents Lower Tier 11 capital for $50 million received as follows:
i 812,500,000 issued in January 2012, maturing in January 2022,
il $12,500,000 issued in October 2012, maturing in October 2022.
i, §5,000,000 issued in December 2013 maturing in December 2028,

v, 510,000,000 issued in August 2014 maturing in August 2024,
v, 510,000,000 issued in December 2015 maturing in December 2025,

Bonds at Serial Mo. i, ii amd v are subscribed by the parent Bank while Bonds at Serial No, iii
and iv are issued by other banks of Indian origin,

The Serial No. 1 and 1i subordinated bonds are listed on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange
and have non-discretionary interest payment coupons of 4% over 6 months LIBOR. The Serial
No, iii, iv and v subordinated bonds have non-discretionary interest payment coupons of 4.5%
over 6 months LIBOR. All the bonds are redeemable by the issuer and are therefore included
within subordinated liabilities.

One subordinated bond issued in March 2009 maturing in March 2019 has been converted into
an additional tier | bond in Feb 2017 afier taking necessary regulatory approvals.

At 31 March 2017 $50,000 thousand (2016: $75,000 thousand) of subordinated liabilities are
expected to be settled more than 12 months after the reporting date.
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27] Other |labilities

2017 2016

$1000 $°000

Bills payable 992 212

Other payables and accrued liabilities 1,776 4,352

Deferred income 1,745 3.470
4,513 8,034

28] Share Capital

Aunthorised share capital
Authorised share capital for the Bank was increased from $250 million to $400 million on 28
March 2017

Issued share capital

2017 2016

No. 5 Nu»- . 5
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 each 2 4 2 4
Ordinary shares of $1 each
At start of year 174,630,625 174,630,625 174,630,625 174,630,625
New Issue of Share Capital 125,000,060 125,000,000 - -
At end of year 299,630,627 299,630,629 174,630,627 174,630,629

During the financial year fresh equity capital of $80 million and additional tier I capital of $20
million was raised from the parent, Also one lower tier [T bond of §25 million was converted in-
to additional tier I bond.

Included within the share capital are two additional tier | bonds issued as perpetual {loating rate
subordinated notes mentioned hereunder

i $25000 thousand issued on 16 February 2017 (Converted into Additional Tier 1
on 16 February 2017 from Lower Tier Il raised by the Bank in 2009),
i, 320,000 thousand issued on 31 March 2017.

Based on the terms and conditions of the purchase agreement and in accordance with IAS 32
guidance, since the interest payments are discretionary and the Bank does not have an obligation
to pay cash or any other financial asset in respect of its perpetual instrument nor there is any ob-
ligation to exercise its right to call the instrument, this is classified as equity in the financial
statements.
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291 Fair Value Reserves

31 March 2017
Balance at | April 2016
Amount transferred to statement of profit or loss

Mowvement in AFS reserve in year

Balance at 31 March 2017

31 March 2016
Balance at | April 2015
Amount fransferred to statement of profit or loss

Movement in AFS reserve in year

Balanceat 31 March 2016

30] Operating Lease Commitments

Gross
$'000
413
309

722

(679)

43

Gross
£7000
2,115

(90)

2,025

(1,612)

413

Tax
£000
(23)
23

(77)
(77

Tax
$'000
(364)
19

(345)
322

(23)

Net
$'000
390
332

722
(756)

(34)

Net
000
1,751

(71)

1,680
(1,290)

390

Where the Bank is a lessee, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operat-

ing leases are:

Less than one year
Later than one year but less than five years

2017
5000
649
626

1,275

2016
$000
992
1,048

2,040

The Bank leases premises for its corporate office and branches. The leases typically run for a
period of 15 to 20 years with a break clause of 5 vears for the Bank and the lessor. Lease pay-
ments are liable to be modified at break period to reflect market rentals. The new premises for
Corporate Office and Central London branch have a rent free period of one year out of initial
five years of lease. Rent for this incentive period has been calculated on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (till next reset/break clause) and kepl as provision that is included in other

liabilities (note 27).

31] Other Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments in respect of financial instruments were as follows:

Guarantees issued to third parties
Letters of credit issued

2017
$'000
1,507

2016
$'000
3,625

=y =Y g |
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31] Other Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

There were undrawn loans of $22,679 thousand (2016: $70,117 thousand) and un-availed por-
tions of sanctioned overdraft limits to the extent of 316,163 thousand (2016: $39.693 thousand)
as at 31 March 2017. Bills amounting to $4,135 thousand (2016: $5,203 thousand) were
sent/received in collection on behalf of customers, The Bank does not have any balance sheet
exposure on such bills for collection.

32] Related Party Transactions

The ultimate controlling party of the Bank is Punjab National Bank (PNB), a public sector bank
incorporated in India which is both the immediate parent company and ultimate controlling par-
ty. The consolidated financial statements of PNB are publically available at 7 Bhikaji Cama
Place, New Delhi 110607, India.

The Bank regards Punjab National Bank (including all its branches in India and abroad) and its
subsidiaries as related parties in view of 100% shareholding of Punjab National Bank. Entire
equity capital and 83.33% of Tier II capital of the Company is held by PNB.

Liabilities and assets outstanding to the related parties on the balance sheet of the Bank as on 31
March 2017 are as below:

2017 2016
5000 5000
Liahilities
Fixed deposits - 1,528
Borrowings 50,329 52,800
Current accounts 2,605 4,926
Assets
Balance in Nostro accounts 2119 1,189
Bills accepted/ confirmed by PNEB discounted to corporates - -
Placements 20,030 -

Excluded from the atove are loans senctioned to corpovates on Stand By Letters of Credir of Punjab
National Bank amounting ro §19.801 thousand {previous vear: $40,926 thousand).

Contingent exposure to Punjab National Bank is as below:

2017 2016

Nature $'000 5000

Letters of Credit and Guarantees Confirmed - 1,653

Cross Currency Swaps (notional) — Sell 52,336 340,097
Cross Currency Swaps (notional) — Buy 52,951 3#?;iﬂﬁ |
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32] Related Party Transactions (continued)

Detail of transactions of a revenue nature with Punjab National Bank is as below:

Nature Particulars 2017 2016
Receipts: 5000 $7000:
Interest Earned Interest on Inter Bank Placements 29 6
Payvments:

A, Professional Fee  Charges for Service Level
Agreement (SLA)* 166 112
B. Interest Paid on Borrowings 1.008 781
Fixed Deposits 14 17

C. Interest Paid on Additional Tier I Capital Bonds of
Capital  Bonds $45.00 million (Last year $25 mil-
{unaudited) lion Tier 11 has been converted &

20 Mio fresh issued) = -
Lower Tier I Capital Bonds of
$50.00 million ($25 Million Con-

verted into AT1 in feb 2017) 1,115 1,272
Lower Tier I Capital Bonds of i
$12.50 million 634 568
Lower Tier I Capital Bonds of

$12.50 million 604 368
Lower Tier Il Capital Bonds of 550 _

$£10.00 milhon

*These charges were levied by PNB, for support services provided during the year. The services
pravided include IT hosting, maintenance and support services to PNBIL and are backed by a
Service Level Agreement (SLA).

The Bank enters into commercial transactions with its parent company in the ordinary course of
business on an arm’s length basis.

Other transactions with related parties (including remuneration paid to Directors which the
Bank considers as key management) are disclosed in note 7. The Bank considers that the cost of
secondment of executives to or from the parent company is not material.

I -
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Risk Governance

The Bank’s approach to holistic risk management is set out within this Risk Governance
Framework (RGF) document. The Governance Framework of PNBIL is depicted below

PNBIL Governance Structure

g venmomn i e

{ tmnm'tﬂu: | 1
3y | ?
: | |
£ | |
2 |
: |

The role and responsibilities of various risk management committees are set out in the following
paragraphs.

Board of Directors

The Board, through the Board Risk Committee and the Board Audit and Compliance Commit-
tee is responsible for establishing mechanisms and structures to control and manage risks across
the Bank. The Board is responsible for ensuring there is a culture and awareness of Risk and
Risk Management Principles throughout the Bank. The Board sets the Bank's Risk Appetile, its
Frameworks and Policies, reviews and approves the ICAAP and ILAAP. oversees the Bank's
Risk profile, and considers Risk when setting the Bank’s Strategy and taking decisions on be-
half of the Bank.

Senior Management is accountable for Risk Management, either as members of the First or
Second Line of Defence. This means that they each have accountabilities either collectively via
EXCO or individually via their functional roles for active risk management. Embedding Risk
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Management is central to the successful implementation of this Risk Governance Framework,
and EXCO members have prime responsibility to promote and embed this in their areas of re-
sponsibility,

Summary details of the committee terms of reference are provided below:

Board Risk Committee (BRC)

The Board Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the Board from which it derives its authority
and to which it reports. It is the Bank's senior enterprise risk committee with delegated authori-
ty from the Board to agree appetites, frameworks and policies and to monitor all of the Bank’s
risks, except for regulatory and compliance risks that are handled via the BACC. The committee
is chaired by an Independent Non-Exccutive Director.

Board Audit and Complionce Committee (BACC)

The Board Audit and Compliance Committee is a sub-committee of the Board from which it de-
rives its authority and to which it reports. It is the Banks senior audit committee with delegated
authority from the Board to agree the Bank's audit universe and annual audit plan, to review
and agree the annual report and accounts, to review and monitor the external audit, and to moni-
tor all “third line™ audit activity in the bank. It is also responsible for agreeing regulatory
frameworks and policies, and for monitoring all regulatory, conduct and compliance (including
Anti- Money Laundering) risks across the Bank. The committee is chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Director.

Board Credit Approval Commitiee (BCAC)

The Board Credit Approval Committee is a sub-committee of the Board from which it derives
its authority and to which it reports. It is the Bank's senior credit committee with responsibility
for reviewing and agreeing all material individual customer credit approvals, The Commuittee is
chaired by the Managing Director (MD).

Executive Committee (EXCO)

The Executive Committee is a committee of the Board from which it derives its authority and to
which it reports, EXCO is the leadership body for the Bank. It has a broad remit in terms of
scope, covering as necessary significant business and operational issues, but ils principal focus
is the development of UK client and UK originated business and the oversight and control of
key risks within the Bank, The committee is chaired by the Managing Director (MD)

Risk and Compliance Commitiee (RCC)

The Risk and Compliance Committee is a sub-committee of the Executive Committee from
which it derives its authority and to which it reports, The RCC has a principal focus on ensuring
that

S S - — -
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

the Bank has appropriate mechanisms for the measurement. monitoring and amelioration of all
its risks other than those relating to credit that are monitored via the CRC and the CROC. The
committee is chaired by the Head of Compliance (HOC).

Asset and Liabillty Committee (ALCO)

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is a sub-committee of the Executive Committee from
which it derives its authority and to which it reports. ALCO has a principal focus on managing

funding and liquidity including monitoring the impact and potential risks to the Bank’s Balance
Sheet with particular reference to ensuring that the Bank meets its regulatory capital require-
ments for market and liquidity risk, including appropriate levels of buffer and contingency. The
committee is chaired by the CFO.

Credit Recommendation Committee (CRC)

The Credit Recommendation Committee (CRC) is a sub-committee of the Executive Committee
from which it derives its authority and to which it reports. The CRC has a principal focus on the
review of credit proposals for the purpose of assisting the Chief Executive Officer’s decision
making responsibility in the sanction all new credit and renewal proposals where the total expo-
sure 1o the borrower is over USD200k and below the threshold for proposals considered as a
Large Exposure. The committee is chaired by the COOQ.

Credit Risk Oversight Commitiee (CROC)

The Credit Risk Oversight Committee (CROC) is a sub-committee of the Executive Committee
from which it derives its authority and to which it reports. CROC has a principal focus on the
monitoring and review of the Bank’s Credit Risk and its lending activities, including its watch-
list and non-performing assets. The committee is chaired by the CRO.

Three lines of Defence Model

A “Three Lines of Defence™ model has been adopted by the Bank for the effective oversight and
management of risks across the Bank. Functions, teams and branches in the first line undertake
frontline operational and support activities. In their day to day activities, these teams take risks
which are managed through the effective design and operation of controls. Each Head of First
Line Function/Team carries responsibility for ensuring that activities undertaken are within the
point in time, Board approved Risk Appetite.

Specifie responsibilities of the First Line include:

. Embedding risk management frameworks, policies, and sound risk management prac-
tices into standard operating procedures

F o
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

I~

Adhering to frameworks, policies and procedures set

Reporting on the performance of risk management activities (including ongoing risk
identification, assessment, mitigation, monitoring and reporting)

Accounting for the effectiveness of risk management i operation including ensuring
that procedures and controls are operated in a consistent and ongeing basis in order 10
effectively manage risks

The Risk Management and Compliance Functions are independent risk management functions,
under the direction of the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and Head of Compliance (HOC), and are a
key component of the Bank’s Second Line of Defence. Risk Management Department and

Compliance Department are responsible for the ongoing assessment and monitoring of risk tak-
ing activities across the Bank.

The Second Line focusses on real-time monitoring and review and is responsible for:

1.

k3

Developing and monitoring the implementation of risk management frameworks, poli-
cies, systems, processes and tools

Ensuring that risk management frameworks, policies, systems, processes and tools are
updated and reviewed periodically and that these are communicated effectively to the
First Line

Ensuring that the above frameworks and tools cover risk identification, assessment. mit-
igation, monitoring and reporting

Establishing an early warning system for breaches of the Bank's Risk Appetite or Lim-
its

Influencing or challenging decisions that give rise to material risk exposure

Reporting via the CRO and HOC, on all these items, including risk mitigating actions,
where appropriate

The Third Line of Defence comprises Internal Audit who is responsible for:

1.

1=

Independently reviewing the design and operating effectiveness of the Bank's internal
controls, risk management and governance systems and processes
Periodically assessing the Bank's overall risk governance framework, including, but not
limited to an assessment of:

» the effectiveness of the Risk Management and Compliance Functions

o the quality of risk reporting to the Board and Senior Management

s the effectiveness of the Bank’s system of internal controls
Providing independent assurance to the Board on the above
Recommending improvements and enforcing corrective actions where necessary
Tracking the implementation of all internal audit recommendations and external audit
management letter points
Reporting to the Board on the status and progress of the above

R SR A
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Palicies (continued)

The Board and the Bank CEO/MD have responsibility for overseeing the effective action and
performance of all three lines of Defence.

Compliance and Risk Management

The core objective of Compliance is to support the Board and senior management in fulfilling
their financial services regulatory obligations and to help maintain the Bank as a *fit and proper’
institution, in whatever form of business it undertakes, by helping to ensure compliance with the
voluntary codes, principles, rules and regulations established by the various financial services
regulatory authorities.

Compliance sets the overall regulatory governance arrangements and provides information,

advice and guidance to business on financial services regulations. It also monitors business ac-
tivities to ensure that improper conduct and failures to comply with regulatory requirements are
brought to the attention of management for appropriate corrective action.

The Bank’s Risk Management function is the responsibility of the Risk Management Depart-
ment and the Compliance Department. The Risk Management and Compliance Departments
have been delegated responsibility for the day-to-day monitoring of the individual risks by the
Managing Director. The purpose of each of the areas is to ensure that market, eredil and opera-
tional risk in the Bank is kept within the guidelines set by the Board.

Compliance and Risk Management provides a focal point to coordinate communications and
consultations with regulatorv authorities and also carries out reviews of relevant business units
against applicable rules. guidance and the Bank's internal policies and procedures. The Head of
Compliance & Money Laundering Reporting Officer has the responsibility of oversight into the
compliance aspects of the Bank and he is assisted by the internal auditor for effective oversight.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit department monitors compliance with policies and standards and the effec-
tiveness of internal control structures across the Bank through its programme of business audits,

The Head of Internal Audit reports regularly to the Audit Committee and the Managing Diréctor
where immediate corrective action 1s taken.

Risk Categorisation

The Bank has categorised various risks under following headings:
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Credit Risk

Credil risk is defined as potential financial loss on account of delay or denial of repayment of
principal or interest with respect to a credit facility extended by the Bank, both fund and non-
fund based. Credit risk can also arise on account of downgrading of counterparties 1o whom
credit facilities are extended or whose credit instruments the Bank mav be holding, causing
the value of those assets to fall.

Risks arising from adverse changes in the credit quality of borrowers or general deterioration
in the economic conditions under which these counterparties operate could also affect the re-
coverability and value of Bank's assets and therefore its financial performance.

The following techniques are in place to mitigate the credit risks:

*  The Bank has an approved lending policy wherein the types of credit facilities are defined
as is the sanctioning authority which grants within specific financial limits;

s Every credit facility bevond a pre-determined limit is processed through the ecredit
recommending committee and sanctioned by the credit approval committee;
Credit risk under each loan above the threshold limit is assessed both on financial and non-
financial parameters;

*  Congentration risk is taken into account both with respect to individual or group exposures
as well as mdustry wide or country wide exposures;

= Most of the facilities are secured by either tangible securities or third party guarantecs;

= With respect to large value facilities including under syndicated facilities, documentation is
done through external solicitors;

*  Periodic review and monitoring of facilities is undertaken to identify and attend to any
observed weakness in any facility;

= All facilities above prescribed threshold limits are reported 1o the Board every guarter;

= Lending policies and limits are periodically reviewed by the Board; and

*  Risk rating of individual proposals beyond cut-off limit is done as per the internal credit
risk rating model.

The carrying value of financial assets recorded in the fimancial statements represents the Bank’s
maximum exposure to credit risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is defined as the potential adverse change in the Bank’s income or net worth arising
from movements in inierest rates, exchange rates, equity prices and/or other market prices. Ef-
fective identification and management of market risk is required for maintaining stable net in-
terest income.

The most significant forms of market nisk to which the Bank is exposed are identified as interest
rate risk, exchange risk and price risk. Most of Bank’s liabiiities are on fixed rate of interest
while most of the Bank’s assets are on floating rate of interest. Bank regularly analyses the
same and has [ixed limits for maximum mismatch. Exchange risk arises mainly on account of
the Bank’s open positions. This is also monitored on a daily basis and an upper linit is fixed for
the same.
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
Assets held under the trading book are regularly marked to market and carried al fair value.

The Bank is exposed to foreign exchange risk to the extent of its open position in each currency.
The Bank has stipulated an internal limit for maximum open position and is measuring and
monitoring this open position on a daily basis.

The Bank deals in various currencies and it is not always possible to match the asset and liabil-
ity in each currency. As a result, the Bank uses currency swaps to eliminate currency risk on
long or short currency positions. These derivatives are re-valued daily and any change in their
fair value is recognized immediately in profit and loss. The total notional amount of outstanding
currency exchange contracts to which the Bank is committed is $324.80 million (2016: $493.60
million).

The open position of the Bank as on 31 March 2017 is as follows:

Currency Open Position USD Equivalemt
000 5000

Indian Rupees 159,191 2,456
Pound Sterling 686 857
Euro 622 666
Japanese Yen 691 f
Canadian Dollar 23 17
Norwegian Kroner - =
Nepalese Rupees 114 1
UAE Dirham 736 200
Australian Dollar 46 35
Total Long Position in US Dallars 4,238
Total Short Position in US Dollars =

Upward or downward movement of exchange rate by 10% may impacl profitability of the Bank

by $424 thousand (2016: $424 thousand),
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued

Inferest Rate Risk (Re-pricing analysis as at 31 March 2017)

The Bank is monitoring its interest rate mismatches an a regular basis, and the potential loss on
account of upward or downward movement of interest rates by 2% based on exposure as at 31
March 2017 is presented below:

Upto Non Sensi-
i 1-3 Jj-6 6-12 1-3 Over 3 tive Cate-

Particilars Manth Months Manths Maniths NS ¥ ears Fory Total
ASSETS § (DDs) R LLEY] S ((0s) § (Oiis) S (00is) § (0] $ (0005} S (00fs)
Cash and cash cquiva- 465,010 25,000 - - - - - 490,010
leiis
Investment sccurities — - - - - - - 59,968 59968
held for trading
Derivative financial 1382 1.76%9 1,153 15 - - 4319
insiruments
Loans and advances to 59418 115,720 14,137 5007 194 - 468 205,154
hanks
Loans and advances to 306,571 140,992 16,135 10,345 42,156 10467 68,536 605,202
customers
Investment securitics — 1,793 a7 - 1.874 15,937 33,667 78 53,936
available for sale
Investment securitles — - - - sl 8,430 - 5936
held to maturily
Property, plant and - - - - - - 962 962
equipment
Intangible assels - - - - - - 556 556
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 15802 25,802
Current tas Assets - - - - - -
Prepayments and other 117 - 297 - - - 514
receivables -
Total #34.401 183868 51,525 17,954 S8BT 52,564 156,570 1,455,369
LIABILITIES
Perivative linancial ] 245 R 10i] = - - = 435
instrimenis
Depaosits from hanks 12,933 20,759 - - - - 73.692
Deposits from custom- 129943 116,574 1143405 L78,708 312865 BE. 457 - 1,134,852
£rs
Current tax liahilities - - - - - - - -
Subordinated liabilitics - 15,000 35000 - - Si00a
Beferred tax labilities - - - - - - - -
Other liabilitics 1.167 - - - - - 3346 4,513
Share Capital - - 45.000 - - - 254,631 2995631
Keserve and retained - - - - - - (107,740) (107,7400)
earnings
Fair Value Reserves - - - - - = (34) (34)
Total 154,053 176,578 194,505 178,704 12865 88,457 150,203 1455369
Inierest Rate Gap 480348 107.280 {142,980} (160.754) (254378 | (315.891) 6.367 -
Imerest Rate Swap for = | (A7.537 (224,736) 262,272 - . -
Hedging
Net Gap 480,348 69,753 (367,716} (160.754) 7.894 (35.893) 6367 -
Impact of Interest 400 233 (2.758) {2.411) 316 (2871) - (T091)
Variatlon of 2%

The Bank has a stipulated limit for open positions and the actual open position is measured and
monitored regularly,
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to meet its payment obligations with re-
spect to customer deposits or any borrowing or obligations under any other assets or liabilities,
within stipulated time and without significant additional cost. The Bank has Board approved In-
ternal Liguidity Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP) in place, in line with the guidelines is-
sued by the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA), The Bank has a system in place 1o monitor
total contractual inflow and outflow and to manage the gap within pre-stipulated limits prescribed
by the Board and/ or the regulator. The lollowing table analyses the Bank’s assets and liabilities
(based on undiscounted cash flows) into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining pe-
riod to the contractual maturity date at the balance sheet date:

A5 at 31 March 2017 ek | LY | BI2 Jisac | v 1909 Foaal -

month | month | meonth TS

$7000 S'000 | S'000 | ST000 | SO00 | S°000 | SO0D | S°000
Assets
Cash and cash equvalents 4650100 25000 . - - - -l 450010
Investment securites — held for rading 59,968 - - - - - - 59968
Dertvative francial mstroments 1382 L7689 1168 - - - 4318
Loans and advances to banks 10518)  7.500] 46449) 90157 20063] 30467 -l 205154
Loans and advances to customers 179527 472531  SBTI0l 73105 1889051 100202 -] 605202
Tnvestment securities — avadlable for sale 1,793 357 1514 11821 15738] 26942 - 33536
Investment securities — held to matunity . y 506, -l 7a830  Lam - 8936
Property, plant and equipment . - - ‘ - - 542 262
Intansible assets . . - . . - 556 586
Deferred tax assets - 25802  I5E0
Curren] tax Assefs
Prepavments and other receivables ) - 297 ! - . £
Total assers TISA25] 39409 109004 170444] 2320590 158708 27320| 1455369
Desvative fmancial nstroments 10 45 200 - - . - 455
Deposits from banks 12533 40,759 - - mER
Deposits from customers 329043 110574] 293002 2256490 175674 - L134.882
Subordmated Eabilities . - - 12500 3TN -l 50,000
Deferred tax Eabiities - - - - - -
Other babdities 1,542 13 372 412 1470 4 - 1513
Share capital ; ; i ; = 1 99| 2wsn
Reserves and tetained eamings 5 4 i ) o -] (107.740)] (107.740)
Far Vahie reserves 5 s 5 ; . (34) {34)
Total Liabimes 334428] 110832 293584] 226061 240403  3R204] 190857] 1455369
Fmancial g‘u@mus and Jetters of credin - sl 1300 1 | i | | 3643
net of depost
lrevocable Loan commitments §373 - - - - - 331
Tatal equitv. Sabiitizs and commitmenns I67130] T12133] 293597( 226061 40403  E204| 191.857| 1469388
Net liguidity gap 351,293 (29| sese3) 5417 3] 120504 (164531 (14016)
Cumulative Ligwdtty Gap 381203 208571| 93978 38361 30O17] 150321| (14.016)
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

The Bank is also holding sufficient high quality liquid assets (HQLA) in approved securities
and balance with the Bank of England to meet the obligations for 90 days under siressed condi-
tions. Bank is also maintaining no negative mismatch under wholesale fund flow for 90 days.
The comparative analysis as at 31 March 2016 was as below:

As at 31 March 2016 Tptolm|1-3m |3-12m |l-2ywr  [2-5yr |Over 5yrs|Undated |Total
so00] S'000|  so00]  $000| s000 $°000] S'000 §'000
Assels
Cash and cash equivalen 240,208 - - - - - -| 240205
Fierestimink o = kel i 19,727 < : . : . Jas27
tradmg
Deivatve fmancial mstraments (i 4,012 144 1,767 - - 5,994
Loans and advances 1o banks 4,865 §9581| 19.369] 166,227 30411 4 310453
Loans and advances to customers 343423 40965 BEOG8| 95329 327634 176,072 -| 1,071,550
frsiment seccchus —avihbe 500 17250 43397 oo 1 122080
for sale
L - - | 102 149 1 um
Aty
Propeny, plant and equipment . - . - . . 1526 1,526
Intanizble assets - - - - - - 170 170
Deferred Tax Asset 3836 3836
Current Tax Assét 3.891 ERY|
Prepavments and other receivables 436 - 260 - - - . 696
Total assels G638.726] 45477 178053 134224) 538280 267556 9.423] 1.811,739
Dernative fnancial mstruments 12,550 1,74 640 - - - < 14944
Deposis from banks 74336 76991 25397 240 - -| 176963
Drepesits from customers 3541990 95035] 450673] 297039 161,045 115 «f 1,358,109
Current tax Habiitias - - - - -
Subordmared habities - . - ] . 15,000 -1 75.000]
Deferred tax Hatekties - - - - - 2 &7 57
Other Eabilties 1,202 558 1,153 1464 3636 . - 8034
Share capital - - - - - - 114631 174,631
Reserves and retained earmmgs - - - - - - 3610 3610
Far Vahie reserves - B - - - . 391 391
Total Liabilities 442287| 174338] 477863 298303] 164544 75115 178688 1311739
Financial guarantees and lemers of .
S 3,35 L - : ; n | 3624
Irevocable Loan commimments 33330 - - - . . A 38330
Fealatgahy; iy ol ss4170] 179338 amises| osmsos| 1essas]  7sase| 178689] 185369
commitments
Net bquidity gap 154,556] (128.861)] (299,810)] (164.279)] 373.336] 192,370 (169.263)] (41,954)
Cumulative Liquidity Gag 154.556] 256951{2741 15]! (438,394)| (65,038) 1203120 {41.959)
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
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33] Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

ALCO is primarily responsible for overseeing the implementation of the liguidity policy of the
Bank. The Bank measures and monitors the liguidity position on a daily basis. The Bank consid-
ers the funding ability before committing additional credit facility and closely monitors. the up-
coming payment obligations, The Bank has an Individual Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Pro-
cess (ILAAP) document taking into account the revised guidelines issued by the regulator.

The Bank undertakes stress tests on its liquidity position laking into account worst case scenarios,
based on its own past experiences as well as industry level guidelines. The Bank has also put in
place contingency plans to meet its liquidity obligations under stressed scenarios. The Bank is al-
so holding near liquid assets (marketable assets) in its portfolio to meet its liguidity obligations,
The liquidity positions are reported to the Board from time to time and the policy is reviewed pe-
niodically to meet the changing needs. The Bank is holding a Liguidity Asset Buffer in the form of
US Treasury Bonds and balance with the Bank of England to the extent of $501,366 thousand as
at 31 March 2017 (2016: $278,016 thousand),

Operational Risk (unaudited)

Operational nisk is defined as the potential risk of financial loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal process, systems. people or external events. Major sources of operational risks for
the Bank are identified by management as I'T security, internal and external fraud, process errors,
money laundering risks and external events like failure of transportation, non-availability of utili-
lies etc.

The Bank has identified each of such possible eventualities and established mitigation processes
and internal controls, including maker checker for all financial transactions, an [T Business Con-
tinuity Plan in case of a disaster, documentation of processes and procedures, AML/CFT guide-
lines, staff handbook, TCF policy, anti-bribery pelicy, records retention policy. compliance code
of conduct etc. These are lested periodically.

Regulatory and Compliance Risk

Regulatory and Compliance Risks are risks arising from failure to comply with laws, regulations,
rules, standards and codes of conduct applicable 1o the Bank's activities.

The Bank maintains a separate independent compliance function thal manages and monitors these
risks through policies, staft training and regular monitoring

Conduct Risk

Conduct Risk is the risk that the conduct of the Bank or its staff towards customers or within the
markel leads to poor customer outcomes, a failure to meet its customers’ or Regulators’
expectations or breaches of regulatory rules or laws. The Bank manages its conduct risks through
a “commitment from the top™ to good customer service and outcomes, through policies,
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PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

procedures and regular training, as well as regular monitoring including “mystery shopping™
exercises at its branches.

Group Risk

Group Risk is the risk associated with being a subsidiary in a wider group. This will also include
strategic and business risks associated with the parent, impacting upon the reputation, focus and
direction of PNBIL's business. The use of parental services such as IT is also included.

These risks are miligated at the strategic level through PNBIL operating its own, largely
autonomous, business model and at operational level through Business Continuity planning and
lesting.

Capital Management

The Bank manages its capital base to maximise shareholders’ value by optimising the level and
mix of its capital resources. The Bank's authority to operate as a Bank is dependent upon the
maintenance of adequate capital resources. The Bank is reguired to meet minimum regulatory
requirements in the UK and in other jurisdictions where regulated aclivities are undertaken. The
Bank operates a centralised capital management model considering regulatory and economic
capital. The Bank's capital management objectives are 1o:

e Maintain sufficient capital resources to meet the minimum regulatory capital
requiremenis set by the Prudential Regulation Authority and the European Banking
Authority; and

e Maintain sufficient capital resources to support the Bank's risk appetite and economic
capital requirements; and

e Allocate capital to support the Bank's strategic objectives, including optimising returns
on economic and regulatory capital.

The actual capital of the Bank, including equity capital, Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier Il
capital eligible to be considered as capital based on the regulatory guidelings is as under:
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34] Capital Management (continued)

2017 2016

Tier Component $7000 $1000

Core Tier One Capital ¢ Permanent Share Capital 254,631 149,631
s Profit and Loss Account and Other Re- (107,740) 3,610

Serves )

s Available for Sale Reserve (34) 390

146,857 153,631

Additional Tier 1 ¢ Perpetual Subordinated Debt 45,000 25,000
Deductions from TierI e Intangible Assels (556) (170)
*  Deferred Tax Assets (25802)  (3,836)

Total Tier I Capital 165499 174,625
Tier 1T Capital # Perpetual Subordinated Debt - -
= Long term dated subordinated debt S0.000 Tﬁ.’ﬂi_}ﬂ-

o Collective Impairment Provision 4,720 3,630

54,720 80,630

Deductions from Tier I e  Amortisation of Dated Tier Il capital ma- {404) (10,022)

turing within five years

Total Tier 11 Capital 54316 ?l},ﬁﬂﬂ
Other Regulatory Deductions - -
Total Capital (unaudited) 219.815 245233

The Bank is required ar all imes to monitor and demonsirate compliance with the relevant
regulatory capital requirements of the Prudential Regulation Authority and those prescribed
under Capital Requirement Regulations and Directives. The Bank has pul in place processes
and controls to monitor and manage the Bank’s capital adequacy.

35] Events after the Balance Sheet date

There have been no reportable events after the balance sheet date, other than the Chairman’s res-
ignation on 5 May 2017 and infusion of capital of $ 20 million on 2 June 2017 being remainder of
PNB Board's approval of a $120 million capital injection.
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36) Country-by-Country Reporting for the year ended 31 March 2017

Article B9 of the Capital Requirements Directive (“"CRD IV") sets out a Country by Couniry
Reporting (“"CBCR™) obligation on CRD IV regulated entities. This obligation was transposed
into UK law under Statutory Instrument 2013 No. 3118 Capital Requirements (Country-by-
Country Reporting) Regulations 2013.

Turnover and profit/(loss) before tax amounts are reported in accordance with IFRS principles
as adopted by the European Union, whilst corporate income tax amounis disclosed below are
on a cash paid basis, in accordance with CBCR requirements. Corporate income tax paid and
received in the year will not directly correspond 1o accounting profits and losses reported in
the same year due to timing differences as an element of the payments will relate to prior
years.

Information disclosed below contains details of corporate income tax paid and received;
however, PNBIL incurs a range of other taxes which do not form part of this disclosure,
including withholding taxes, UK Bank Levy, social security and VAT. If these taxes had been
disclosed this would have significantly increased the value of taxes paid by PNBIL during the
year ended 31 March 2017,
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Notes on the disclosures:

Balances disclosed above are rounded to the nearest $000°s with respect to turnover. loss
before tax and corporate income tax received.

Country: Couniry location under which an entity’s activity 1s reporied is primarily based on
the country of incorporation/legal registration and on other factors such as the tax residence. In
most cases all of these factors are consistent; however, where they differ the tax residence of
an entity has been used as the determining factor in classifying activities.

Turnover: Turnover s defined as *net gains on financial insirmments classified as held for
trading’, ‘net gains on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss’,
net gains on available-for-sale financial assets’, ‘interest income’ net of “interest expense” and
‘other income’,

Loss belore tax: represents Accounting losses under IFRS accounting as adopted by the
European Union,

Corporale income tax received details the value of corporate income tax received on a cash
basis,

Full time equivalent number of employees: is the average full time equivalent number of
employees for the vear legally employed by PNBIL, excluding contractors.







